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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

The year 2021-22 has been nothing short of a roller coaster ride for the Indian hotel sector. All through the year, the 
sector has shown resilience by navigating through uncertainty, adapting to an ever-changing environment, and 
persevering through the ups and downs on the rocky path to recovery. The silver lining being that the leisure segment, 
which was ignored in the past, is now being awarded its due focus. 

During 2021-22, the overall revenue has been increased by 41% over the previous year, the team managed to 
substantially control the operating costs by saving 58% against the previous year. This resulted in minimizing the 
Gross Operating Loss and keeping it down to Rs. 317.64 (In Millions) against Rs. 547.83 (In Millions) in the previous 
year.

The Company is committed to curtail its losses by implementing consistent and stringent measures for cutting the 
overall expenditure, thereby lowering its losses gradually.

Dear Shareholders,

It gives me great pleasure to present to you the 51st Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22. 
Through the years, the Company has enjoyed many highs and navigated through many lows. 

 

Global tourism continued to be impacted in 2021 by repeated waves of the pandemic and the consequent 
reintroduction of travel restrictions. After a turbulent 2020, the year 2021 began on a promising note, with people 
starting to travel for short breaks, weekend getaways, staycations, and workcations, etc. encouraged by a steady 
drop in active COVID cases and the launch of the country’s COVID vaccination campaign. As per Horwath HTL 
Market Report: India Hotel Market Review 2021, calendar year occupancy for 2021 was 43.5% in comparison with 
32.0% in 2020 and 24.9% during the initial pandemic period of March to December 2020. 

One important change occurred during F.Y 2021-22. As per the decision of Air India, Specific Alternative Mechanism 
(AISAM) for transferring the investments of Air India Limited (AI) in Hotel Corporation of India Limited (HCI), to AI 
Assets Holding Limited (AIAHL), the entire shareholding of HCI was transferred from AI to AIAHL at book values on 
11.01.2022 and the same was noted by the Board in its 257th Meeting dated 11.01.2022.

As your Company moves towards its next phase, we are reasonably optimistic that the Company will thrive to bring 
back its name in the Hospitality Sector. Our optimism stems from the fact that the Holding Company and the 
Government of India has supported the Company to sail through the toughest time. Our optimism also stems from the 
fact that post pandemic, we are going to see a significant increase in travel.

I take this opportunity to thank my colleagues on the Board for their valuable guidance, the Shareholders, Company’s 
customers and the Central and State Governments as well as Air India Limited, AI Assets Holding Limited and its 
subsidiaries for their unstinted support. I would also like to place on record my appreciation to the employees at all 
levels for their hard work, dedication and commitment during these challenging times. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
Hotel Corporation was in compliance with the guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by the Department of 
Public Enterprises (DPE), wherever applicable during the year. The quarterly returns/annual returns on Corporate 
Governance were filed with the authorities concerned within the stipulated time.

CHANGE IN HOLDING COMPANY 

Sincerely,

Sd/-
Vikram Dev Dutt 

Chairman
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

(Rupees in Millions)
REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their 51st Annual Report and the Audited Accounts for the year ended 31st 
March 2022.

Net (Loss) Carried To Balance Sheet (842.51) (966.19) -13%

Depreciation 29.17 44.09 -34%

Total Operating Expenditure 670.00 797.43 -16%

Total Revenue 352.36 249.60 +41%

Interest 501.30 381.81 +31%

Cash (Loss) (818.94) (929.64) -12%

Gross Operating (Loss) (317.64) (547.83) -42%

Net (Loss) Before OCI (848.12) (973.72) -13%

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 5.61 7.53 -25%

PARTICULARS 2021-22 2020-21 Variance %

As on 31st March 2022, the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company was Rs.137,60,00,000/- (Rupees One hundred and 
Thirty-Seven Crore sixty lakhs) divided into 1,37,60,000 shares of Rs.100/- each which were held as follows:

SHARE CAPITAL

OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

As on 31st March 2022, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company was Rs.150,00,00,000/- (Rupees One hundred 
fifty Crore) divided into 1,50,00,000 shares of Rs.100/- each. 

• Rs.110,60,00,000 (Rupees One hundred and Ten Crore sixty lakhs) divided into 110,60,000 shares of Rs.100 
each held by AI Assets Holding Limited being the Holding Company.
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DIVIDEND

In terms of Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 the dividend could not be considered due to accumulated losses. 

CHANGES IN THE SHARE CAPITAL, IF ANY

ANNUAL PLAN OUTLAY 2021-22

• Rs.27,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Seven Crore) divided into 27,00,000 shares of Rs.100/- each held by the 
Central Government in the name of the President of India.

As in the previous years, the Company has not received any Annual Plan Outlay in the year 2021-22.

During the year there was no change in the Authorized and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company. However due to the disinvestment/privatization of Air 
India Limited (the then Holding Company), the entire shareholding of Air India Limited held in Hotel Corporation of India 
Limited was transferred to AI Assets Holding Limited on 11.01.2022 and therefore, presently, Hotel Corporation of India 
Limited is the subsidiary of AI Assets Holding Limited (a Government of India Undertaking).

Since there was no unpaid/unclaimed Dividend for the past years, the provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 
2013 did not apply.

FOREIGN TOURS

In view of the accumulated losses, the Board of Directors have decided not to transfer any amount to reserves during 
the year.

HUMAN RESOURCE

The Company incurred NIL expenditure under this head during the year under review.

AMOUNTS TRANSFERRED TO RESERVES

 

Personnel
 
As on 31 March 2022, the Company had on its payroll a total of 435 permanent employees as against 502 as on 31 
March 2021. The Company believes that the challenges surrounding the business environment can be best mitigated 
by a workforce that is motivated, nimble, adaptive to change, innovative and fast in learning.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCTION AND PROTECTION FUND

Implementation of Official Language Policy

STATUTORY COMPLIANCE

VIGILANCE
 
During the year under report, periodic surprise checks and inspections were carried out at all units of HCI.  During the 
year, procedural advice was rendered from time to time in matters pertaining to tender/purchase procedures. Vigilance 
Awareness Week was observed from 26 October 2021 and 1 November 2021.

Employment of Ex-Servicemen

The Company had been following the Government directive received in this regard for employment of Ex-Servicemen.

Industrial Relations

The industrial relations in the Company have traditionally been harmonious. 

With regard to the implementation of Official Language Policy, the directives received from the Government from time to 
time are being followed. 
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Subsequent to the disinvestment of three out of six Units of HCI, there was a ban on recruitment and hence, no 
recruitment exercise was carried out. However, the Company continued to observe the Government directives for 
reservation of posts in promotions of SC, ST and OBC candidates. SC/ST/OBC. The number of permanent employees 
as on 31 March 2022 is as under:

Employment of SC, ST & OBC 

Total No. of 
employees

Total Number
of SC

employees

% of SC 
employees

Total No. 
of ST

employees

% of ST 
employees

Total No. 
of OBC 

employees

% of OBC 
employees

435 95 21.83 36 8.27 48 11.03

Energy conservation continues to be given priority by the Company. Constant efforts are being made to reduce energy 
consumption. 

The Company has decentralized its structure to deal with the applications/appeals received under RTI Act and has 4 
Assistant Public Information Officers (APIOs), 5 Public Information Officers (PIOs) and an Appellate Authority have 
been appointed for speedy disposal of applications/ appeals.  During 2021-22, 47 Requests/Appeals were received out 
of which 44 Requests/ Appeals were disposed off during the year and balance 3 were disposed off in the subsequent 
year i.e. 2022-23.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY & TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT

Hotel Corporation of India Limited has ensured compliance with the provisions of Right to Information Act for providing 
information to the citizens.

The Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo during the year were Nil. 

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS

DEPOSITS

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RTI ACT, 2005

In December 2021, the J&K Government issued a Notice terminating the lease of the land on which the Centaur Lake 
View Hotel, Srinagar is located. The Company gave its response to the said termination notice. However, in March 
2022, the J&K Government appointed an Estate Officer under the J&K Public Premises (Eviction of Unauthorized 
Occupants), 1988. 

Particulars required under Form B of the relevant Rules Pursuant to Section 134 (2)(m) of the Companies Act 2013, 
have not been given since the Company has no Research and Development activity. The question of technology 
absorption, adaptation or innovation is not applicable to the Company, in view of it being a Service Industry.

Section 135 (1) of the Companies Act 2013 requires provision for CSR to be made applicable for a company having 
threshold Net Worth of ₹500 crores or Turnover of ₹ 1,000 crores or Net Profit of ₹5 crores or more during any of the 
three immediately preceding financial years. As the company has average net loss during immediately preceding three 
financial years, no CSR spent has been made during the FY 2021-22.

The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. All employees 
(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this.

One Complaint pertaining to sexual harassment received during 2019-20. However, due to outbreak of Covid-19, 
hearings of which continued in 2021-22 and the same has been finalized in 2022-23. During the year 2021-22 there 
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were 3 complaints received pertaining to sexual harassment. All 3 reports were submitted by the Complaints Committee 
and suitable action was taken by the Management. 

INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARY/JV/ASSOCIATE COMPANY

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company.

During the year, the registered office of the Company shifted from State of Maharashtra to NCT of Delhi vide Certificate 
of Incorporation dated 02.03.2022

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

The Estate officer appointed by the J&K Government issued a show cause notice on 05.04.2022. The Company 
responded on 15.04.2022 requesting for three weeks’ time to give a detailed response. However, the Estate Officer 
issued an Eviction Order dated 25.04.2022 to vacate the Hotel premises within 45 days. This was challenged by way of 
an appeal before Appellate Authority (District Magistrate, Srinagar). The Company went through several rounds of 
litigation with respect to the dispute, including the Supreme Court, J&K High Court. On 14.06.2022, the Estate Officer 
entered the Company’s hotel premises and sealed the premises after evicting all the employees. The Company filed an 
appeal against the Order of the Appellate Authority by filing a Writ Petition before the Hon’ble High Court of J&K on 
15.07.2022. The High Court vide order 16.11.2022 disposed of the Writ Petition filed by the Company and referred the 
dispute to the AMRD mechanism. Consequently, a committee has been formed under the “Administrative Mechanism 
for Resolution of Disputes” by the Ministry of Civil Aviation.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

A detailed Management Discussion and Analysis Report is given separately.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As required under Section 173 of the Companies Act 2013, five Meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were 
held during the Financial Year 2021-22 as detailed below, and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 were adhered 
to while considering the time gap between two Meetings.   

Details of Board meetings are given below:

255 04 August 2021 4 3

Sr. No. Date of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present

256 28 September 2021 4 4

254 29 June 2021 4 4

257 11 January 2022 4 4

258 30 March 2022 4 4

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

 • The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at 31 March 2022 and of the Profit or Loss of the Company for that period.

 • The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities to the best of the knowledge and ability of the Directors.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, the Directors confirm that:

 • That the annual accounts have been prepared on a “going concern” basis.

 • The Company being an unlisted Company, provisions of Section 134(3)(e) are not applicable.

 • In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards had been followed along with 
proper explanation relating to material departures.
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 • The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Laws 
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

AUDITORS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the requirements of Corporate Governance with the exception of the appointment of 
Independent Directors on the Board.  This matter is being pursued with the Administrative Ministry.  The detailed 
Corporate Governance Report forms part of this Annual Report is annexed as Annexure I.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. Jain Jagawat Kamdar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai was appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company for the financial year 2021-22 by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India in accordance with the provisions 
of the Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Independent Directors

(ii) As per Section-177(2) of The Companies Act, the Company has not complied with the requirement of appointing 
Independent Director in the Audit Committee.

Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, the Company has appointed M/s A. Kaushal & Associate, Practicing Company 
Secretary, Delhi, to conduct a Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2021-22.

Management's Comments

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31 March 2022 is enclosed at Annexure II 

It is a statement of fact.

Noted

(v) That the Company has generally complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India.

Management's Comments

(iii) As per Section-178(1) of The Companies Act, the company has not constituted the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee.

(vi) The Company has not filed Form MGT-14 as per requirement of General Circular No. 14/2020 dated 08.04.2020 
and General Circular No. 10/2021 dated 23.06.2021 for Annual General Meeting held on 30.09.2021 and Extra-
Ordinary General Meeting held on 13.01.2022.

(i) As per Section- 149(4) read with rule 4 of The Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) rules, 2014 
the Company has not appointed requisite number of Independent Director on the Board of the Company.

Management's Reply on the observations contained in the Secretarial Audit Report

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

(iv) As per Section-178(1) of The Companies Act, the Company has not complied with the requirement of appointing 
Independent Director in the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

There were no Independent Directors on the Board as required under the provisions of Section 149(4) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 for 
the period from1stApril, 2021 till 31st March, 2022.  As per the clause (97) of the Articles of Association of the Company, 
appointment of Directors on the Board of the Company shall be done by the administrative ministry, i.e. the Ministry of 
Civil Aviation in consultation with AI Assets Holding Limited and the Company has no say in the matter.  In view of the 
same, the Company could not comply the requirement with respect to the composition of the Audit Committee and 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 due to non-
appointment of Independent Directors for the said period.
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PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis and were in 
the ordinary course of business. There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company 
with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict 
with the interest of the Company at large.

Due to the outbreak of Covid -19, the proceedings of the General Meetings held during the year through video 
conferencing had to be submitted with the Registrar of Companies within the prescribed timeline. The Company is in the 
process of complying the aforesaid requirement.

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 
during the year under review and hence the provisions of Section 186 are not applicable to the Company.

Adequate internal financial controls are in place for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to the Company’s policies; the safeguarding of its assets; the prevention and detection of frauds and errors; 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records; and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
which is commensurate with the operations of the Company. 

INTERNAL  AUDITOR

Management's Comments

M/s M.S.P & Co., Chartered Accountants, have been appointed by the Board of Directors to review the business 
processes and controls to assess the adequacy of the internal control system, to ensure compliance with all applicable 
laws and regulations and, facilitate in optimum utilization of resources and protect the Company's assets for F.Y 2021-
22.

Exemption from the first and second proviso to sub-Section (1) of Section 188 with regard to obtaining approval of the 
Company in General Meeting, has been provided to a Government Company in respect of contracts or arrangements 
entered into by it with any other Government Company.

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee and also the Board for approval.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

Particulars of contracts or arrangements or transactions in Form AOC-2 are attached herewith as Annexure-III.

There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which required the Statutory Auditors to report to the Audit 
Committee and / or Board under Section 143(12) of Act and Rules framed thereunder.

 

(B) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

(A) Conservation of Energy & Technology Absorption: Your Company has made all efforts wherever possible for 
conservation of non-renewable sources of energy and utilizing the alternative sources of energy.   

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

EARNINGS
OUTGO

NIL
NIL

(INR)

v Define the Organizational Structure for effective Risk Management
v Develop a “risk” culture that encourages all employees to identify risks and associated opportunities and to 

respond to them with effective actions

The Company is in the process of formulating the Risk Management Policy with the following objectives:

RISK MANAGEMENT

v Explain the approach adopted by the Company for Risk Management

v Identify, assess and manage existing and new risks in a planned and coordinated manner with minimum 
disruption and cost, to protect and preserve Company’s human, physical and financial assets.

v Provide an overview of the principles of Risk Management
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In compliance with Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, a copy of your Company’s Annual Return as on 31st 
March, 2022 will be hosted on the website of the Company at www.centaurhotels.com. Further, an extract of the Annual 
Return in form MGT 9 is enclosed herewith as Annexure-IV.

ANNUAL RETURN

Details of Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:

2 Smt. Thrity Cyrus Dalal Chief Financial Officer 11 February 2015

1 Shri Deepak Khullar Chief Executive Officer 5 November 2020

Sr.No Name Designation Date of Appointment

3 Kum Shyamala P Kunder Company Secretary 11 July 2002

  (01.04.2021 to 30.09.2021) 

4 Smt. Isha Jain Company Secretary 

  (w.e.f 01.10.2021) 1 October 2021

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE

HCI is a Subsidiary of AI Assets Holding Limited.  As per the provisions of Article 97 of the Articles of Association of the 
Company, the number of Directors of the Company shall not be less than three and not more than fifteen all of whom 
shall be appointed by AI Assets Holding Limited/Administrative Ministry, who in turn can do so subject to the directions of 
the Government of India.

In view of the above provisions of the Articles, the Ministry of Civil Aviation has been requested to nominate Independent 
Directors on the Board of HCI, however, appointments are awaited.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

The following changes have occurred in the constitution of Directors and KMP of the Company during the Financial Year 
2021-22 :

  Director of AI Assets 

 Director, MoCA Assets Holding Limited 

1 Shri Rajiv Bansal, Nominee Director of AI  14.02.2020 11.01.2022

 Air India Limited 

 MD, AIAHL & JS MoCA Director of AI 

5 Shri Jovanta Chakarbortv, Nominee Director of AI  11.01.2022 11.02.2022

 Secy MoCA Assets Holding Limited

 Director, MoCA Assets Holding Limited

6 Shri Pranjol Chandra Nominee Director of AI  11.01.2022 

2 Shri Vimalendra Anand Patwardhan Nominee Director of AI 20.03.2020 11.01.2022 

3 Smt. Amrita Sharan Nominee Director of AI  11.09.2020 11.01.2022
 Director Personnel, Assets Holding Limited

7 Shri Vikram Dev Dutt Chairman and Nominee  27.01.2022

Sr.No Name Designation Date of appointment Date of cessation

4 Shri Satyendra Kumar Mishra, Chairman and Nominee  11.01.2022 27.01.2022

 JS, MoCA Assets Holding Limited 

 JS & FA  Assets Holding Limited 

8 Smt. Rubina Ali Nominee Director of AI  11.02.2022 

9 Shri Deepak Sajwan Nominee Director of AI  11.02.2022 
 Deputy Secretary, MoCA Assets Holding Limited 

  Assets Holding Limited

  Holding Limited
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WOMAN DIRECTOR

By virtue of reconstitution of the Board of HCI vide OM dated 11-02-2022 issued by the Ministry of Civil Aviation (MoCA), 
Smt. Rubina Ali was appointed as Woman Director & Nominee Director on the Board of the Company w.e.f. 11-02-2022.  

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSON (KMP)

Sr.No Name Designation Date of appointment Date of cessation

1 Smt. Kum Shyamala P Kunder Company Secretary  11.07.2002  30.09.2021

2 Smt. Isha Jain Company Secretary 01.10.2021 22.08.2022

In view of the exemption granted vide Notification dated 5 June 2015 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, information on 
the following points have not been given:

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, there were no applications made or proceedings pending in the name of the Company 
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

i. Performance Evaluation of Board, its committees and individuals
i. Policy for selection and appointment of Directors and their remuneration

iii. Related Party Transactions
ii. Remuneration Policy - Remuneration to Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors

During the year under review, there has been no one time settlement of Loans taken from Banks and Financial 
Institutions.

The Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) under Section 118(10) of 
Companies Act, 2013, were compiled with by your Company to the extent applicable.

The “nil comments” of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143(6) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013 
on the accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022 are enclosed to the report.

 

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA  

Even though vide the above notification exemption has been granted to Government Companies from the application of 
First Provision to Section 188 i.e. to obtain approval of the shareholders in respect of contracts or arrangements entered 
into by it with any other Government Company, approval of the Board is required to be obtained for the same.  
Accordingly, the approval of the Board has been taken for Related Party Transactions entered with Air India Limited for 
the year 2021-22 to the tune of Rs.11.36 Crores.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY 
CODE 2016

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT ON ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND VALUATION 
WHILE AVAILING LOAN FROM BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the support and co-operation extended by the employees of 
the Company. The Board also wishes to acknowledge gratefully the support and guidance received from the Ministry of 
Civil Aviation, Air India Limited and AI Assets Holding Limited.  The Directors wish to thank the Comptroller and Auditor 
General of India, Chairman and members of the Audit Board, Statutory Auditors and Banks. 

On Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
         Vikram Dev Dutt   

CHAIRMAN
Date:  10th February 2023
Place:  New Delhi
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Global economic activity is experiencing a broad-based and sharper-than-expected slowdown, with inflation higher 
than seen in several decades. The cost-of-living crisis, tightening financial conditions in most regions, Russia’s invasion 
of Ukraine, and the lingering COVID-19 pandemic all weigh heavily on the outlook. Global growth is forecast to slow 
from 6.0 percent in 2021 to 3.2 percent in 2022 and 2.7 percent in 2023. This is the weakest growth profile since 2001 
except for the global financial crisis and the acute phase of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Global inflation is forecast to rise from 4.7 percent in 2021 to 8.8 percent in 2022 but to decline to 6.5 percent in 2023 and 
to 4.1 percent by 2024. Monetary policy should stay the course to restore price stability, and fiscal policy should aim to 
alleviate the cost-of-living pressures while maintaining a sufficiently tight stance aligned with monetary policy. Structural 
reforms can further support the fight against inflation by improving productivity and easing supply constraints, while 
multilateral cooperation is necessary for fast-tracking the green energy transition and preventing fragmentation

ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

Global tourism continued to be impacted in 2021 by repeated waves of the pandemic and consequent reintroduction of 
travel restrictions. International tourist arrivals across the world for 2021 were 421 million, 4.6% over that of 2020 but 
lower by 71.3% compared to 2019 according to data from the United Nations World Tourism Organization (UNWTO). In 
absolute numbers, international arrivals at destinations worldwide were still far less by a billion travellers in 2021 than 
the pre-pandemic levels of 2019. Asia and the Pacific registered an absolute decline in international arrivals in 2021 
over 2020 by 64.7%. International tourist arrivals in South Asia were at 5.7 million, lower by 42.9% from 2020 and 83.1% 
from 2019. In 2019, South Asia had 33.7 million international tourist arrivals. Amongst other regions, international tourist 
arrivals in 2021 over 2020 to North America and Africa grew by 22.2% and 13.9% respectively while the Middle East 
declined by 8.3%. All these regions are trailing their pre-pandemic levels by large margins. International tourist arrivals 
i.e. overnight visitors increased by 130% in January 2022, higher by 18 Million. Even though the increase in arrivals 
during January 2022 was the same as that for the entire 2021 over 2020, it was 67.1% lower than the pre-pandemic 
level of January 2019. South Asia recorded an increase of 135.3% in arrivals in January 2022 over the same month in 
2021. The encouraging results were impacted by the Omicron variant of COVID-19 virus and re-introduction of travel 
restrictions across several countries. The ebbing of this wave of the virus gave way to the rising geopolitical stress in 
Europe and South Asia. (Source: UNWTO, Barometer March 2022

GLOBAL HOSPITALITY AND TOURISM INDUSTRY 

 

 

 (Source: IMF )

GLOBAL ECONOMY: THE YEAR IN REVIEW 

The global economy resumed its path of recovery even with the resurgence of new variants of the COVID-19 pandemic. 
After initial nationwide lockdowns deployed during the first wave, fewer nations resorted to zero tolerance policies to 
control the virus. On the contrary, governments encouraged COVID-19 appropriate behavior, improvements in 
healthcare infrastructure, increased coverage of testing and wide vaccination drives while resorting to localized 
containment measures to control subsequent waves. Following a contraction of 3.1% in the calendar year 2020, global 
growth is estimated at 6.1% in 2021. Growth estimates for 2021 of advanced economies is 5.2% while that of emerging 
markets and developing economies are pegged at 6.8%. For the same period, economic growth estimate for United 
States of America (USA) is 5.7% and the United Kingdom (UK) is 7.4%. Emerging and Developing Asian economies is 
estimated to have grown by 7.3% with the Indian economy estimated to have grown by 8.9% and China by 8.1%. The 
economies of Maldives, South Africa and Nepal is estimated to have grown by 33.4%, 4.9% and 2.7% respectively while 
Bhutan is estimated to have contracted by 3.7% in 2021. (Source: International Monetary Fund (IMF) – World Economic 
Outlook - October 2021 and April 2022)

More recently, difficult economic conditions posed by inflationary trends across nations, pandemic led supply-side 
disruptions accentuated by the geopolitical situation in Europe and possibilities of new strains of a mutating virus 
threaten to hinder global manufacturing and trade thereby impacting the general economic sentiment. In this context, 
the global economy is projected to grow at 3.6% in 2022 and 2023. USA is projected to grow by 3.7% in 2022 and 2.3% 
in 2023 while the UK is projected to grow by 3.7% in 2022 and 1.2% in 2023. The IMF projects a growth rate of 8.2% for 
India in 2022 and 6.9% in 2023 while China is projected to grow by a modest rate of 4.4% in 2022 rising to 5.1% in 2023. 
Emerging and Developing Asia is projected to grow by 5.4% in 2022 and 5.6% in 2023. The economies of Maldives, 
South Africa, Nepal and Bhutan is projected to grow by 6.1%, 1.9%, 4.1% and 4.4% in 2022 and 8.9%, 1.4%, 6.1% and 
4.5% in 2023 respectively. (Source: IMF – World Economic Outlook – April 2022)

INDIAN ECONOMY: THE YEAR IN REVIEW 

The Indian GDP grew during FY 2021-22 at 8.7% compared to a contraction of 6.6% in FY 2020-21 as per the Press 
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Note dated May 31, 2022 of the National Statistical Office of the Government of India. Total Consumption grew by 7.0% 
in FY 2021-22 enabled by private spending. Exports of both goods and services have been exceptionally strong in FY 
2021-22 growing by 24.3%. Imports also recovered strongly with recovery in domestic demand coupled with higher 
international commodity prices to grow by 35.5% in FY 2021-22. In terms of Gross Value Added (GVA), the agricultural 
sector was the least impacted compared to other industries and grew by 3% during FY 2021-22 after a growth of 3.3% in 
FY 2020-21. Trade, Hotels, Transport, Communication and Broadcasting related services, constituting about a third of 
overall services grew by 11.1%. The Indian real estate market, which has proven to be inflation-proof, has shown a 
significant revival in FY 2021-22. India’s balance of payments remained in surplus throughout the past two years which 
has enabled the Reserve Bank of India to maintain a strong position in foreign currency reserves above US$ 600 billion. 
In its Monetary Policy Report of April 2022, the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has projected real GDP to grow at 7.2% in 
FY 2022-23. Several high frequency indicators viz. railway freight, GST collections, electricity demand, import of capital 
goods, etc. have displayed robust growth during February and March 2022. There has been a significant rise in 
consumer optimism on the back of improved sentiments of the general economic situation. According to 'The 
Economist' - May 14, 2022 edition, India is expected to be the fastest growing big economy in the world. While the 
economy has been looking up in the fourth quarter of FY 2021-22, escalating geopolitical tensions in the Black Sea 
region resulting in significant hardening of international crude oil and other commodity prices, the loss of momentum in 
global trade and risk of future waves of COVID-19 infections pose downside risks to the outlook for India in line with the 
global economy. Further, in May 2022 the RBI considered prevailing high inflationary conditions while raising interest 
rates by 40 basis points. (Source: Reserve Bank of India Reserve Bank of India Monetary Policy Report – April 2022 and 
May 2022)

Subsequent waves of the COVID-19 virus have resulted in a quicker ‘V-shaped’ recovery of economic activity and 
mobility with comparatively lower disruption in livelihoods. This was also strengthened by higher vaccinated population, 
low-fatality-quick recovery rate of the Omicron variant and better healthcare preparedness in the country. These factors 
have resulted in higher consumer confidence which is expected to improve the prospects for travel and tourism within 
the country. While various State Governments have eased regional travel restrictions, the Government of India recently 
ended its COVID-19 containment measures under the Disaster Management Act and resumed regular international 
flights, thus paving the way for greater inflow of international tourist arrivals to India. The Indian tourism industry 
achieved peak occupancies of ~90% without international inbound travel and with lower levels of business travel. With 
these segments beginning to rebound demand forecast is expected to be robust. Corporate business travel is more 
likely to resume for purposes of client acquisitions, relationship building, industry conferences, exhibitions and 
tradeshows. Increase in international travellers to leisure destinations as well as inbound travel for weddings, 
conferences and events along with pent-up demand among domestic travellers are expected to further increase 
occupancies. Increasing demand for rooms coupled with a favourable demand-supply equation in branded 
accommodations should progressively improve average room rates. This is substantiated by the business performance 
for April 2022 which was better than that of April 2019. The ‘new normal’ is expected to bring with it new segments of 
customers and trusted, branded hotel chains would be in the best position to leverage such opportunities. The industry 
would continuously need to explore ancillary revenue streams to maximize revenue per square foot of real estate 
thereby protecting its revenue generating capabilities

Finally, large scale development of infrastructure by the Government, including roads, railways, metro-railways, 
airports and ports will aid long term growth of tourism and hospitality sector in India. These investments, coupled with 
coordinated efforts of Government ministries along with the industry should provide major stimulus for growth of Indian 
travel and tourism going forward
COMPANY’S OUTLOOK

Segment wise reporting for the year 2021-22:

OUTLOOK 
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(Rs in million)

Revenue 185.39 155.45 11.52 352.36

Particulars Hotels Flight Kitchens Others Total

Operating Profit/ (Loss) (192.31) (114.09) (11.25) (317.65)

Net Profit / (Loss) (228.78) (119.12) 494.61 (842.51)

**********

The management is positive that with the help of all its stakeholders and its Human capital, the Company would be able 
to turn around.

Company is also exploring the possibility for catering to other sectors and venturing into related product and distribution 
extensions. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS 

The Company has embarked upon a journey to reduce its dependencies on Air India Limited post its disinvestment:

• It is in the process of augmenting talent to enhance its operational standards and enable the Company to attract 
businesses from Non-Air India entities. 

Your Company witnessed subdued performance in terms of business in FY 2021-22 primarily in the first half of the year 
due to Covid-19 and the resultant partial lockdown imposed by the Central Government and the various State 
Governments.

• It is also making efforts to de-risk the business model by exploring other lines of business

Estimation of the future impact of COVID-19 on its operations

RISK MITIGATION STRATEGIES

Since the situation is exceptional and is changing dynamically, the Company is not in a position to gauge with certainty, 
the future impact on its operations. We believe, in the short term, there will be impact on sales volumes, revenue, and 
profitability and the operations will gradually ramp up only after the resolution of the pandemic. However, the Company 
is confident about adapting to the changing business environment and respond suitably to fulfil the needs of its 
customers.

Your Company’s Internal Auditors carry out audit of the transactions of the Company periodically, in order to ensure that 
recording and reporting are adequate and proper. ¬The Internal Audit also verifies whether internal controls and checks 
& balances in the systems are adequate, proper and up to date. Corrective actions for any weaknesses in the system 
that may be disclosed by the Audits are taken. Management is exploring introduction of digitization and integration of 
key back office processes to further enhance internal control mechanisms.

The Company is taking all necessary measures to reduce fixed costs, rationalize resources and explore all 
opportunities to enhance toplines. 

GOING CONCERN

The Management believes that domestic travellers, catering, socials and leisure sector will be key to revival of its hotel 
business.

Company is also working towards turning around Chefair by enhancing capacity utilization with the objective to be able 
to cater to the increased demand from airlines other than Air India. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Annexure-I

Accordingly, the composition of the Board of HCI as prescribed by MOCA vide its order dated 11-02-2022 is as follows:

1.  Company’s Philosophy on Code of Corporate Governance 

Hotel Corporation of India Limited (HCI) is a Public Sector Undertaking, currently a subsidiary of AI Assets Holding 
Limited, under the Ministry of Government of India. For the period 01.04.2021 to 11.01.2022, HCI was a subsidiary of Air 
India Limited (AI). However pursuant to the disinvestment of AI and the decision of AISAM, the investment of AI in HCI 
was transferred to AI Assets Holding Limited (AIAHL) on 11.01.2022 and accordingly Ministry of Civil Aviation (MoCA) 
reconstituted the Board of HCI by issuing OM dated 31.12.2021 followed by OM dated 11.01.2022, 27.01.2022 and 
11.02.2022.

Its directors are appointed by the holding company / administrative ministry. As per the Articles of Association of the 
Company, the number of Directors shall not be less than three and not more than fifteen all of whom shall be appointed 
by the holding company / administrative ministry. 

Further, in pursuance of OM dated 11.01.2022, Shri. Satyendra Kumar Mishra was given the additional charge of MD, AI 
Assets Holding and therefore eventually remained as the nominee director on the Board of HCI.

Board of Directors as on 31 March 2022.

4. Shri Deepak Sajwan - Nominee Director

 Director 
3. Shri Pranjol Chandra - Nominee Director

2. Board of Directors

 Chairman & Managing Director
 AI Assets Holding Limited 
 
2. Smt. Rubina Ali - Nominee Director

The company firmly believes in and has consistently practiced good Corporate Governance. The company’s essential 
character is shaped by the values of transparency, professionalism, and accountability. The company is committed to 
attain the highest standard of Corporate Governance. The philosophy of the company in relation to Corporate 
Governance is to ensure transparency in all its operations, make disclosures and enhance all stakeholders’ value within 
the framework of laws and regulations.

 Jt. Secretary 
 Ministry of Civil Aviation

1. Shri Vikram Dev Dutt  - Nominee Director                                 

 Ministry of Civil Aviation

 Deputy Secretary
 Ministry of Civil Aviation

Shri Rajiv Bansal, Chairman, Shri Vimalendra Anand Patwardhan, & Smt. Amrita Sharan, Nominee Director ceased 
from the Board of HCI w.e.f.11.01.2022 vide MoCA OM dated 31.12.2021. and Shri Pranjol Chandra, Director, MoCA 
and Shri Joyanta Chakraborty, Director, MoCA had been appointed as Nominee Directors on the Board of HCI.

Further, in pursuance of OM dated 27.01.2022 and 11.02.2022 issued by MoCA regarding reconstitution of the Board of 
HCI, Shri. Satyendra Kumar Mishra, JS MoCA and Shri Joyanta Chakraborty, Director, MoCA, ceased to be Directors 
on the Board of HCI and Shri. Vikram Dev Dutt, CMD-AIAHL, Smt. Rubina Ali, JS MoCA and Shri Deepak Sajwan, 
Deputy Secretary, MoCA had been appointed on the Board of HCI. 

Since the reconstitution of the Board by MoCA vide order dated 11.02.2022, did not mention the position of the 
Chairperson, therefore HCI Board vide its Circular Resolution bearing No 60 dated 27.02.2022 had nominated Shri. 
Vikram Dev Dutt, as the Chairperson on the Board of HCI and passed the requisite resolution till any further instruction 
from the MoCA/Holding Company.
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The Board places on record its appreciation of the valuable services rendered by Shri Rajiv Bansal, Chairman, Shri. 
Vimalendra Anand Patwardhan, JS & FA, MoCA, Shri Satyendra Kumar Mishra, JS, MoCA, Shri Joyanta Chakraborty, 
Director, MoCA and Smt. Amrita Sharan, Director on the Board of the Company during their tenure.

Details regarding the Board Meetings, Annual General Meeting, Directors’ Attendance thereat, Directorships and 
Committee positions held by the Directors are as under:

3.Board Meetings

254th   Board Meeting  29th June 2021

255th   Board Meeting  04th August 2021 

Five Board Meetings were held during the financial year on the following dates:

256th   Board Meeting  28th September 2021 

257th    Board Meeting  11th January 2022

258th   Board Meeting                     30th March 2022

Particulars of Directors including their attendance at the Board/Shareholders’ Meetings during the financial year    
2021-22

Name of the 
Director

Academic 
Qualifications

Attendance 
in the Board 

Meetings 
held during 

the year

Details of Directorships 
held in other Companies

Memberships held 
in Committees

Shri Rajiv Bansal
CMD-Air India 
Limited
(till 11th 
January, 2022)

Civil Engineer 
from IIT Delhi,
Diploma in 
Finance, ICFAI, 
Hyderabad
Exe Masters 
in International 
Business,
IIFT, Delhi

4

• Air India Express Ltd., 

• Air India SATS Airport 
Services Pvt Ltd.,

Air India Limited 
Chairman & MD-

Part-time Chairman

• AI Engineering Services 
Ltd., 

• AI Airport  Services Ltd.,

• Alliance Air Aviation Ltd.,
• Hotel Corporation of India 

Ltd., 

Director

• Air Mauritius Limited and Air 
Mauritius Holding Ltd.

 Bharat Yantra Nigam 
Limited

Audit Committee

AIL

Audit Committee

AIASL 

Member

Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee

Chairman

HCI
Member

Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee

Member

Smt Amrita Sharan 
Director 
(Personnel)- 
Air India Limited
(till 11th January 
2022)

B.A. -Eco.(Hons), 
MBA   

5 Director 
•   Air India Limited
•  AI Engineering Services 

Ltd., 
• Hotel Corporation of India 

Ltd.

Member
Audit Committee- AI 
Airport Services Limited

CSR Committee- AI 
Airport Services Limited
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Name of the 
Director

Academic 
Qualifications

Attendance 
in the Board 

Meetings 
held during 

the year

Details of Directorships 
held in other Companies

Memberships held 
in Committees

Shri Vimalendra 
Anand 
Patwardhan
Joint Secretary 
& Financial 
Advisor, Ministry 
of Civil Aviation
(till 11th January 
2022) 

B. Com
IAS 

5

• AI Engineering Services 
Limited,

Director

• Pawan Hans Ltd., 

• Solar Energy Corporation of 
India Ltd. (SECI).

• AI Assets Holding Limited,

• Indian Renewable Energy 
Development Agency 
Limited (IREDA), 

• AI Airport Services Limited, 
Chairman 

2. Nomination & 
Remuneration 
Committee-

1. Audit Committee- AI 
Airport Services Limited 
and; AI Engineering 
Services Limited, 

3.Stakeholder 
Relationship 
Committee-

 Indian Renewable 
Energy Development 
Agency Limited 
(IREDA),

1. Audit Committee- Indian 
Renewable Energy 
Development Agency 
Limited (IREDA), Solar 
Energy Corporation of 
India Ltd (SECI), AI 
Assets Holding Limited, 
Pawan Hans Ltd., 
Airport Authority of India

Member

2. CSR Committee- AI 
Airport Services 
Limited, AI Engineering 
Services Limited  

3. Remuneration 
Committee:

 Airport Authority of 
India,

 Indian Renewable 
Energy Development 
Agency Limited, 

 Solar Energy 
Corporation of India Ltd

 Indian Renewable 
Energy Development 
Agency Limited, Solar 
Energy Corporation of 
India Ltd

 Indian Renewable 
Energy Development 
Agency Limited

5. Risk Management 
Committee

 4.NPA &Stressed Asset 
Resolution Committee:

Government Directors
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Name of the 
Director

Academic 
Qualifications

Attendance 
in the Board 

Meetings 
held during 

the year

Details of Directorships 
held in other Companies

Memberships held 
in Committees

Shri Satyendra 
Kumar Mishra
Jt.  Secretary, 
Ministry of 
Civil Aviation

(till 27th January 
2022)

M.Tech 
(applied Geology) 
MA 
(in Public Policy)

4

• AI Engineering Services Ltd

Director 
• Hotel Corporation of India 

Ltd.,
• AI Airport Services Ltd.,

Audit Committee

Audit Committee

AIAHL

Member

HCI
Member

AIESL

Audit Committee

Audit Committee

Member

Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee

Chairman
Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee

Selection Committee

AIL

Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee
Flight Safety Committee

Chairman
Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee

Member
Audit Committee

AIASL
Member

Share Allotment 
Committee

Government Directors

Shri Pranjol 
Chandra, 
Director, 
Ministry of Civil 
Aviation 
(From 11th   
January 2022)

B. E. Mechanical 2

• Hotel Corporation of India 
Limited

• Alliance Air Aviation 
Limited.,

• Air India Express Limited 
Services Ltd.,

Director 

Audit Committee

AAAL

Member

Audit Committee
HR Committee
Flight Safety Committee

HCI

Member
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Name of the 
Director

Academic 
Qualifications

Attendance 
in the Board 

Meetings 
held during 

the year

Details of Directorships 
held in other Companies

Memberships held 
in Committees

Shri Joyanta 
Chakraborty, 
Director, 
MoCA Director, 
Ministry of 
Civil Aviation 
(From 11th  
January 2022 
till 11th February 
2022)

IRSEE: 2006 1
• Hotel Corporation of India 

Limited

Director

Audit Committee

Audit Committee

AIAHL 

Member

Audit Committee

Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee

AAAL

Audit Committee

Chairman

Member

AASL

HR Committee

AIESL

Member

Chairman

Flight Safety Committee

Chairman

Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee

Member

Government Directors

Shri Vikram 
Dev Dutt, - 
Chairman 
(From 27th 
January 2022)

B.Tech. & 
PGDM, 
IAS (UT:93)

1
AI Airport Services Limited,
Chairman

AI Engineering Services 
Limited,

Alliance Air Aviation Limited,

Director
Port Blair Smart Projects 
Limited

Hotel Corporation of India 
Limited, AI Assets Holding 
Limited

AAAL
Member
Audit Committee

Member

HR Committee

HCI

Audit Committee 

Flight Safety Committee

Smt. Rubina Ali 
Joint Secretary, 
Ministry of 
Civil Aviation 
(From 11th 
February 2022)

PGDM 1
AI Airport Services Limited
Alliance Air Aviation Limited

Director

Shri. Deepak 
Sajwan, Deputy 
Secretary, 
Ministry of Civil 
Aviation 
(From 11th 
February 2022)

PGDM 1 Director
AI Airport Services Limited
Alliance Air Aviation Limited
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AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Shri. Deepak Sajwan, Deputy Director, MoCA Member  

Shri. Pranjol Chandra, Director, MoCA M ember

Chairman & Managing Director, Invitee 

• To recommend for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;

The meetings of the Board of Directors were generally held at Air India’s Headquarters in New Delhi or at any other 
place at the convenience of the director via Video Conferencing (VC) or physically. However, with the change of Holding 
Company from Air India Limited to AI Assets Holding Limited, further meetings are either held at AI Assets Holding HQ 
Office or at the registered office of the Company. The meetings are scheduled well in advance. In case of exigencies or 
urgency, resolutions are passed by circulation. The Board meets at least once a quarter to review the operating 
performance of the Company. The agenda for the meetings are prepared by the officials of the concerned departments 
and approved by the CEO & the Chairman. The Board papers are circulated to the Directors in advance. The members 
of the Board have access to all information and are free to recommend the inclusion of any matter on the agenda for 
discussion. Senior executives are invited to attend the Board meetings and provide clarification as and when required. 
Action Taken Reports are put up to the Board periodically. To enable better and more focused attention on the affairs of 
the Company, the Board delegates certain matters to committees of the Board set up for the purpose.

In terms of requirements of DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs, the Board has adopted Code of 
Conduct for the Directors and Senior Management. There is a system of affirming compliance with the Code by the 
Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company. A declaration of compliance signed by the Chief 
Executive Officer of the Company is enclosed with the Report.

• To review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

The terms of reference of this Committee are:

5. CODE OF CONDUCT

Smt. Rubina Ali, Joint Secretary & Financial Advisor, MoCA Chairman

6. BOARD COMMITTEES

The quorum for the meeting of Audit Committee would be 1/3rd of the total strength or 2 whichever is higher.  During the 
year under report, four meetings of the audit committee were held.

As on 31 March 2022, the following were the Members of the Audit Committee:

4. BOARD PROCEDURE 

Shri Vikram Dev Dutt,

AI Assets Holding Limited       

• To review the Internal Audit program & ensure co-ordination between the Internal & External Auditors as well as 
determine whether the Internal Audit function is commensurate with the size and nature of the Company’s 
Business;

• To discuss with the Auditor before the audit commences the nature & scope of the audit;

• To examine the financial statements and the auditors’ report thereon;

• To review the Statutory Auditor’s Report, Management’s response thereto and to take steps to ensure 
implementation of the recommendations of the Statutory Auditors;

• Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;

• Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

• Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;
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The details of these meetings are given below:

38th   Audit Committee Meeting  04th August 2021 

Annual General Meetings during the last three years

Meetings of the Audit Committee

39th   Audit Committee Meeting  28th September 2021 

37th   Audit Committee Meeting  29th June 2021

 The Audit Committee met Four times during the year to review various issues including inter alia Financial Statements
 of the Company for the year before submission to the Board, as per details given below:

• Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

40th   Audit Committee Meeting                  30th March 2022

• Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

• To consider any other matter as desired by the Board ;

No. of meeting Date and time of the Meeting

50th Annual General Meeting 

Extra Ordinary General Meeting

49th Annual General Meeting 

Extra Ordinary General Meeting

Extra Ordinary General Meeting 

48th Annual General Meeting

30th September 2021
at 1130 hrs

13th January 2022
at 1500 hrs

31st December 2020
at 1230 hrs

28th October 2020
at 1130 hrs

10th June 2020
at 1500 hrs

30th September 2019
at 1230 hrs

1st floor, Transport Annex Building, 
AirIndia Complex, Old Airport, 
Santa Cruz(E), Mumbai-400 029

Hotel Centaur Premises, Indira Gandhi 
International Airport, New Delhi-110037

1st floor, Transport Annex Building, 
AirIndia Complex, Old Airport, 
Santa Cruz(E), Mumbai-400 029

Adequate Disclosures pertaining to Director’s interest, related party transactions, maintenance of statutory registers 
have been taken and placed periodically before the Board of Directors to take informed decisions, with the Board 
following a clear policy of specific delegation and authorization of designated officers to handle the business matters. 
MCA Filings with respect to disclosures, intimations, allotments and appointments have been made in a time bound 
manner with no pending matters.

**********

7.  DISCLOSURES AND STATUTORY COMPLIANCES        
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CODE OF CONDUCT

DECLARATION

I hereby declare that all the Board Members & Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance 
with the Code of Conduct as adopted by the Board of Directors for the year ended 31st March 2022.

Sd/-
Vikram Dev Dutt

Chairman
Hotel Corporation of India Limited

Date:  10th February 2023
Place:  New Delhi
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FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022

To,

Indira Gandhi International Airport 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by “Hotel Corporation of India Limited” (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial 
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

New Delhi -110037 

The Members,
HOTEL CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED,
Hotel Centaur Premises

Based on our verification of Hotel Corporation of India Limited books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representatives, during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company 
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022, according to the provisions of: 

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
ii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-Laws framed thereunder;
iii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 

Overseas Direct Investment.

Having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on the basis of Management Representation 
Letter issued by the Company, the Company has complied with the following laws applicable specifically to the 
Company: 
 a) The Prevention of Food Adulteration Act, 1954; 

 c) Hotel Insurance Policy;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India. During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the 
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above except to the extent

 b) Food Safety and Standards Act,2006;

 1. That the Company has generally complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India.

 2. As per Section-178(1) of The Companies Act, the company has not constituted the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee.

 3. As per Section- 149(4) read with rule 4 of The Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) rules, 
2014 the Company has not appointed requisite number of Independent Director on the Board of the 
Company.

 4. As per Section-177(2) of The Companies Act, the Company has not complied with the requirement of 
appointing Independent Director in the Audit Committee.

Annexure	II

[Pursuant	to	section	204(1)	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013	and	rule	No.9	of	the	Companies	
(Appointment	and	Remuneration	of	Managerial	Personnel)	Rules,	2014]
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 5. As per Section-178(1) of The Companies Act, the Company has not complied with the requirement of 
appointing Independent Director in the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

 6. The Company has not filed Form MGT-14 as per requirement of General Circular No. 14/2020 dated 
08.04.2020 and General Circular No. 10/2021 dated 23.06.2021 for Annual General Meeting held on 
30.09.2021 and Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 13.01.2022.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with only Non-Executive Director The changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with 
the provisions of the Act except the Company has not appointed requisite number of Independent Director on the Board 
of the Company.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that: -

We further report that, during the audit period, the Company has not carried out any specific events/actions having 
major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules regulations, guidelines.

All the decisions are carried unanimously. The members of the Board have not expressed dissenting views on any of the 
agenda items during the financial year under review.

Adequate notice has been given to all directors/members, as the case may be, to schedule the Board Meetings 
including committee meetings during the financial year under review, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 
properly before the scheduled meeting, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

FOR A. KAUSHAL AND ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Sd/-
CS AMIT KAUSHAL

FCS- 6230, CP No.- 6663
UDIN:-F006230D003078585

Place: New Delhi
Date:  31.01.2023
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Annexure	I

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure- 	and forms an integral part of I
this report.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

The Members,

New Delhi -110037 

To,

HOTEL CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED,
Hotel Centaur Premises
Indira Gandhi International Airport 

5. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

4. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
Company.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide 
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

1. Management of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

FOR A. KAUSHAL AND ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Sd/-
CS AMIT KAUSHAL

FCS- 6230, CP No.- 6663Place: New Delhi
Date:  31.01.2023
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Annexure C to Directors' Report for the year 2021-22

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered during the year ended March 31, 2022, which were 
not at arm’s length basis.

All contracts /arrangements / transactions entered by the Company with related parties under Section 188(1) of the Act 
during the financial year 2021-22 were on an arm’s length basis, in the ordinary course of business which were duly 
approved in the 255th Board Meeting of the Company held on 4th August 2021. The details of contracts or 
arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis are as follows:

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

Form No. AOC-2(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length 
transactions under third proviso thereto

Annexure	III

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-
Vikram Dev Dutt

Chairman
Date:  10th February 2023
Place:  New Delhi



26

Annexure to Directors' Report for the year 2021-22

FORM NO. MGT 9 EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2022
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies 

(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

Annexure	IV

I.   REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

CIN

Registration Date

Name of the Company

Category/Sub-category of the Company

Address of the Registered office 
& contact details

Whether listed Company

Name, Address & contact 
details of the Registrar & 
Transfer Agent, if any.

 U55101DL1971GOI394499

8 July 1971

HOTEL CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED

Government Company

HOTEL CENTAUR PREMISES, INDIRA GANDHI 
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT, NEW DELHI - 110037 IN

No

Link Intime India Private Limited
C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, 
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai – 400083
+91 22 49186000

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 10 % or 
more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated) -

Sr.
No.

Name and Description of main products / services
NIC Code of
the Product/

Service

% to total
turnover of the

Company

1. To carry on the Business of hotel, motel, restaurant, care, tavern, 
flight kitchen, refreshment, room and boarding and lodging, 
housekeepers, licensed victuallers, wine, beer and spirit merchants, 
brewers, malsters, distillers, importers, exporters and manufacturers 
and dealers in all kinds of foods and drinks.

551 100

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY:

Sr.
No.

Name and Address 
of the Company

% of Shares Applicable 
Section

1. AI Assets Holding Limited
2nd Floor, Air India 
Reservation Building, 
Safdarjung Airport, New 
Delhi-110003

80.38% 2 (46)

CIN/GIN Holding / 
Subsidiary / 
Associate

U74999DL2018GOI328865 Holding



27

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity):

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning 
of the year [As on 01-04-2021]

No. of Shares held at the end 
of the year [As on 31-03-2022]

% Change 
during 

the year

Demat Physical
during 

the year
% of Total

Shares
Demat Physical Total

% of Total
Shares

e) Banks / FI        

Funds        

Banks        

h) Foreign Venture Capital 

d) Bodies Corp. 11059991 9 11060000 80.38 11060000 0 11060000 80.38

b) Banks / FI         

e) Venture Capital Funds         

Total shareholding of 

1. Institutions        

b) Central Govt  2700000 2700000 19.62 2700000 0 2700000 19.62

f) Insurance Companies         

(1) Indian        

Promoter (A) 11059991 2700009 13760000 100 13760000 - 13760000 100

A. Promoters        

c) Central Govt.         

d) State Govt.(s)         

g) FIIs         

a) Individual/ HUF

f) Any other        

a) Mutual Funds/UTI         

c) State Govt(s)        

B. Public Shareholding    Not Applicable

I) Others (specify) Foreign 

Sub-total (B)(1):- - - - - - - -  -

Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning 
of the year [As on 01-04-2021]

No. of Shares held at the end 
of the year [As on 31-03-2022]

% Change 
during 

the year

Demat Physical
during 

the year
% of Total

Shares
Demat Physical Total

% of Total
Shares

holding nominal share 

Maker + LLP)        

a) Bodies Corp. (Market 

i) I  Indian         

ii) Overseas         

2. Non-Institutions    Not Applicable

b) Individuals         

I) Individual shareholders 

capital upto Rs. 1 lakh         
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holding nominal share 

iii)Office Bearers         

vi)Foreign Nationals        

ix)Foreign Bodies - D R        

capital in excess of Rs.1 lakh

vii)Clearing Members         

Total Public Shareholding 

i) Non Resident Indians         

ii) Non Resident Indians - 

viii)Trusts        

iv)Directors         

Sub-total (B)(2):- - - - - - - -

ii) Individual shareholders 

c) Others (specify)         

Non Repatriable         

vi)Overseas Corporate Bodies         

(B) = (B)(1)+ (B)(2) - - -  - - - -

v)HUF         

Custodian for GDRs & ADRs - - -  - - - -

-

Grand Total (A+B+C) 11059991 2700009 13760000 100 13760000 - 13760000 100

C. Shares held by

B)  Shareholding of Promoter

Shareholder's
Name

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Shareholding at the end of the year % change 
in

Shareholding
during the

year

Sr.
No.

3. AI Assets Holding Limited Nil Nil Nil 11060000 80.38 Nil 80.38

2 President of India 2700000 19.62 NIL 2700000 19.38% Nil

1 Air India Limited 11060000 80.38 NIL NIL NIL Nil

No. of
Shares

% of total
Shares
of the

Company

% of Shares
Pledged /

encumbered 
to

total shares

No. of
Shares

% of total
Shares
of the

Company

% of Shares
Pledged /

encumbered 
to

total shares

C)  Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) - Pursuant to the disinvestment of 
Air India Limited, the entire shareholding of Air India Limited held in Hotel Corporation of India Limited was 
transferred to AI Assets Holding Limited on 11.01.2022.

Particulars
Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 
Shareholding at the 

end of the year
Sr.
No.

1. At the beginning of the year    

 Air India Limited 11060000 80.38 - -

2. At the end of the year    

 President of India 2700000 19.62 2700000 19.62

% of total
Shares of the

Company

No. of
Shares

% of total
Shares of the

Company

No. of
Shares
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 President of India 2700000 19.62 2700000 19.62

 AI Assets Holding Limited 11060000 80.38 11060000 80.38

 Air India Limited - - - -

D)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders: (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and 
ADRs):

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders
Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 
Shareholding at the 

end of the year
Sr.
No.

% of total
Shares of the

Company

No. of
Shares

% of total
Shares of the

Company

No. of
Shares

NOT APPLICABLE

E)  Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Shareholding of each Directors and each 
Key Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Shareholding at the 
end of the year

Sr.
No.

% of total
Shares of the

Company

No. of
Shares

% of total
Shares of the

Company

No. of
Shares

 which includes directors also)

 NIL

 (Note: Equity Shares are held by Nominees 

 of AI Assets Holding Limited and POI, 

V.  INDEBTEDNESS - Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for 
payment.

Unsecured 
Loans

Secured Loans 
excluding 
deposits 

Total 
Indebtedness

Deposits

i) Principal Amount 0 0 0 0

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year 0 0 0 0

ii) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year 0 0 0 0

iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0

iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0

* Addition 0 0 0 0

Total (i+ii+iii) 0 0 0 0

i) Principal Amount 0 0 0 0

ii) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0

* Reduction 0 0 0 0

Indebtedness at the beginning for the financial year 0 0 0 0

Net Change 0 0 0 0

Total (i+ii+iii) 0 0 0 0

Amount in INR

Previous figure has been restated as per IND AS.  Prior Period items have been given effect in the relevant previous 
years.
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VI.  REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A.     Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
(In figures)

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ ManagerSr.
No.

  Income-tax Act, 1961
 (b)Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 

 section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option

3 Sweat Equity

1 Gross salary

 section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

 (c)Profits in lieu of salary under 

 (a) Salary as per provisions contained in 

4 Commission as % of profit others, specify.

5 Others: (PF, DCS, House Perks tax etc)

 Total (A)

 Ceiling as per the Act

Total
Amount

*There are no Managing, Whole Time Directors in the Company. 

B.  Remuneration to other directors

Particulars of Remuneration Name of DirectorsSr.
No.

 Total(1) -

 Board Sub Committee Meetings) -

 Total (2)

 Fee for attending board committee meetings -

 Overall Ceiling as per the Act

 Total Managerial Remuneration

 Commission

 Commission -

 Others, please specify (Fees for attending 

 Others, please specify

 Total (B)= (1+2)

1 Independent Directors -

2 Other Non-Executive Directors

 Fee for attending board committee meetings

Total
Amount
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C.  REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
(figures in Millions) 

Particulars of 
Remuneration

Key Managerial PersonnelSr.
No.

 (b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 

4 Commission - - - - -

 (c) Profits in lieu of salary under 

 Others, specify. - - - - -

5 Others: (PF, DCS, House 

 contained in section 17(1) of the 

    

 Income-tax Act, 1961 - - - - -

 section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 - - - - -

1 Gross salary 

 (a) Salary as per provisions 

 Income-tax Act, 1961 2.40 .37 .75 .90 4.42

2 Stock Option - - - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - - - -

 - as % of profit - - - - -

 Perks tax etc) - - - - -

 Total 2.40 .37 .75 .90 4.42

Shri Deepak 
Khullar

Smt. Shyamala 
Kundra 

(01.04.2021 
-30.09.2021)

CEO CS CFO TOTAL

Smt. Isha Jain
(w.e.f. 

01.10.2021)

Smt. Thrity 
Cyrus Dalal

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Brief 
Description

Section of the 
Companies 

Act

Authority 
[RD / NCLT/ 

COURT]

Details of Penalty/ 
Punishment/

Compounding 
fees imposed

Compounding - - - - -

Penalty - - - - -

 C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT    -NIL

 A. COMPANY     -NIL

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

 B. DIRECTORS    -NIL

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

Type Appeal made, 
if any 

(give Details)

*Not applicable to Government Companies. Only CEO, CFO and CS are KMPs.
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For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-
Vikram Dev Dutt

Chairman
Date:  10th February 2023
Place:  New Delhi
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 
43(6) (B) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HOTEL 
CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022.

The preparation of financial statement of Hotel Corporation of India limited for the year ended 31 March 2022 in 
accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act,2013 is the responsibility of the 
management of the company, The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under 
section 139 (5) of the act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statement under section 143 of the Act 
based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, 
This is stated to have been done by them vide their Revised Audit Report dated 16 January 2023 which supersedes their 
earlier Audit Report dated 05 December 2022.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit of the financial 
statement of Hotel Corporation of India Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022 under section 143 (6) ( a) of the Act. 
This supplementary audit has been earned out independently without access to the working papers of the Stator 
auditors and is limited primarily to inquires of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective examination 
of some of the accounting records.

In view of the revision made in the statutory auditor's report, to give effect to some of my audit observations raised during 
supplementary audit, I have no further comments to offer upon or supplement to the statutory auditors 'report under 
section 143 (6) (b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the comptroller 
& Auditor General of India

C.M Sane
Director General of Commercial Audit, 

Mumbai

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 20 January 2023
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REVISED INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

1. Disagreements between Jammu & Kashmir Government & Centaur Lake View Hotel (CLVH)

 (Refer note no. 06 & 47 of the Standalone Financial Statements)

We have audited the standalone financial statements of HOTEL CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED (the "Company"), 
which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the standalone statement of profit and loss 
(including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in equity and standalone statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "standalone financial statements").

 Inventory records and Accounting records are not integrated. The Company has practices of maintaining and 
updating Inventory records manually in excel (MS Office).

We draw attention to the matters described as below the effects of misstatements and possible effects of undetected 
misstatements on the financial statements due to inability to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence which are 
material but, not pervasive either individually or in aggregate.

 Further the valuation of regular consumed inventory is derived as 50% cost of the closing inventory at year end, 
instead of any proper standard mechanism for arriving at closing valuation of inventory.

3. MSMED Act compliances

2. Inventory:

 (Refer note no. 32 of Standalone Financial Statements)

 In terms of decision of Jammu & Kashmir Governments, the functioning of Hotel, Centaur Lake View Hotel (CLVH) 
was inoperative w.e.f. 14.06.2022, for action of J&K Government for the sizing of the property. All records and 
documents were seized by the J&K Government due to which we have not audited the financial of CLVH, 
Financial Statements consists of total assets of Rs. 405.23 million as at March 31, 2022 and total revenue of 
Rs.82.05 million for the year ended of CLVH. The financial information of this unit was produced by the 
management hence we are unable to ascertain the impact thereof in the standalone financial statements

 The consumption of stocks, stores, crockery, cutlery etc. is being arrived by adding opening balances to the 
purchases and deducting therefrom closing balances as per practice being followed from the past. In absence of 
maintenance of proper record of stock movement including but not limited to the shortage, scrap, pilferage, 
misuse or theft etc. we were not able to apply other auditing procedures to satisfy ourselves on inventory 
quantities.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except of the matter(s) 
described in Basis for Qualified Opinion section, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as al 31 March 2022, and its loss 
and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended at that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Qualified Opinion

 The Company has classified MSME Vendors registered under Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
(MSMED) Act, 2006. The compliances of procurement; provision for interest, if any, on outstanding dues to MSME 

To The Members Of
HOTEL CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED

This Revised Independent Auditor's Report is being issued in supersession of our earlier Independent Auditor's Report 
dtd. 05th December, 2022 in view of the certain deficiency as directed by C&AG of India in our earlier report. During 
performance of Statutory Audit of Hotel Corporation of India Limited, we have considered the provisions of Companies 
Audit Report Order (CARO), 2020 wherever applicable. Further, we confirm that there is no change on the opinion 
expressed earlier.

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
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(Refer note no. 52)

2. Property Plant Equipment (Fixed Assets) are not properly maintained and updated at various units. No physical 
verification of PPE has been conducted by the management during the current financial year (Last inspection was 
conducted in FY 2019-20)

3. Lease rentals and Turnover levy payable to Airport Authority of India (AAI)/Delhi International Airport Limited 
(DIAL)/ Mumbai International Airport Limited (MLAL) are provided in the books of accounts of the Company and 
duly reflected in the financial statement. Further In view of the dispute between the Company and AAI/DIAL/MIA L, 
interest on account of outstanding payable is not provided but disclosed under the head Contingent Liability and 
are not in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India .

 We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of 
the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Ac countants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act 
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Material Uncertainly Related to Going Concern

 (Refer note no. 18 & 44 of the Standalone Financial Statements).

units could not be verified. We therefore are unable to determine the delay in making payment to such entities and 
liability of interest and compliance on such delaved payments in terms of provisions of MSMED Act.

The Company has incurred a net loss of Rs.842.51 million during the year ended March 31, 2022 and, as of that date, the 
Company's current liabilities exceeds its total assets by Rs. 265.39 million and it has accumulated losses of Rs. 7541.61 
million which has resulted in complete erosion of the net worth of the company. These factors indicate the existence of a 
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. 
However, based on the assessment conducted by the Management and other factors mentioned in the aforementioned 
note, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and no adjustment has been made to the 
carrying value of the assets and liabilities of the Company as at the reporting date.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter 

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to:

1. The balance confirmations in respect of Trade Payables, Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances, Deposits etc. 
have not been received from the parties and hence we are unable to state whether these balances are 
recoverable payable to the extent stated.

 (Refer note no. 7,18 & 36 of Standalone Financial Statements)

 (Refer no te no.2A & 45 of Standalone Financial Statements)

 (Refer note no. 75,17 & 30(ix) of Standalone Financial Statements).

4. The earlier wage agreement was expired on 31 December, 2006 and the union has submitted Charters of 
demands. The Company had negotiations between Wage Negotiation Committee of the Management and Co-
Ordination Committee of HCI Unions and after receipt of final approval from the Ministry of Civil Aviation, the 
Memorandum of Understanding dated 08.08.2019 was entered into between the unions and the Company for 
implementing wage revision for the Unionized category of employees for a period of 10 years effective 
18.08.2008. The wage revision was implemented in the financial year 2019-20. The total estimated provision for 
arrears of wage revision for the unionized category of employees of the company as on 31.3.2022 is Rs.146.36 
million. The Management had announced an interim relief of Rs 5,000/- per month per employee for officers 
effective from 1 January, 2017 which continues to be paid and has been expensed out through the Statement of 
Profit and Loss Account amounting to Rs. 66.81 million as on 31.3.2022. As and when wage revision is approved, 
this amount would be adjusted against arrears payable, if any, for which employee wise details have been 
maintained separately in the books of accounts. Further, the calculations for arrears payable to employees 
effective 08.08.2008 are in progress. The management is of the opinion that in case the wages provided is 
inadequate then the provision for differential liability will be made in the year it is finalized.

 (Refer note no.l2, 19, 20, 30 & 33)



36

5. The Company has not complied with certain provision of the Act. As a consequence thereof:

 b. Since the Company has not appointed Independent Directors, the Company has not complied with the 
provisions of Section 177(2) and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 as regards the composition of the Audit Committee and the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board.

 c. The above non-compliance was also reported bv the previous auditors in their Auditors' report dated 4th 
August, 2021 for financial year 2020-21.

6. The Company has internal control system which need strengthening for followings:

 a. The Company has not appointed Independent Directors as required under the provisions of Section 149(4) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014 and hence, no meeting of the Independent Directors could be held during the Audit Period.

 a. Strengthening the internal audit process so as to ensure adequate coverage of all the areas and ensure 
effective internal controls at all units of the C ompany.

7. Fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities is arrived based upon best information available or 
provided by the management. We have relied upon the management information for fair - valuation on the 
absence of other required information.

 b. Laying down Standard Operating Procedures with regard to timely accounting of all transactions to ensure 
that proper books of accounts are maintained. (Refer note no. 47 & 48)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below lo be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report:

 c. The above non-compliance was also reported by the previous auditors in their Auditors' report dated 4th 
August, 2021 for financial year 2020-21.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matters.

Key Audit Matters

Sr.
No.

Key Audit Matter How our auditor address the Key Audit matter

Going Concern

The company is in loss, net worth is fully 
eroded, going concern needs to be 
examined.

The Company is also tapping Online Travel Agents, Walk-in 
Customers, Event Booking, Corporates for increasing the business. 
The Company is also planning of introducing additional capex for 
operationally essential matters, obtaining ISO Certification in order 
to upgrade the present properties.

As per the management projection and clarification, management 
are of the view that though the company is in a loss but continuous 
support Government of India will ensure the company runs its 
business as going concern. Also, the Company has signed Master 
Service Agreements with Air India which is valid up to 31.12.2024 
which ensures that company will be able to run its business as going 
concern in near future.

Refurbishment of existing 50 Guest Rooms at Centaur Hotel Delhi 
Airport to increase the occupancy level.

(Refer note no. 52(iii)).

The Company does not have any loan from financial institutions and 

1
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Contingent liabilities:

We identified this as a key audit matter 
because the estimates on which these 
amounts are based involve a significant 
degree of management judgement in 
interpreting the cases and it may be 
subject to management bias.

Refer note no. 30 of the Standalone 
Financial Statements.

There are various litigations pending 
before various forums against the 
C o m p a n y  a n d  m a n a g e m e n t ' s 
judgement is required for estimating the 
amount to be disclosed as contingent 
liability.

none of the creditors have applied for insolvency against the 
Company. Based upon the above facts and data, we have performed 
our audit procedure and make opinion accordingly.

- read various correspondences and related documents pertaining 
to litigation cases produced by the management and relevant 
external legal opinions obtained by the management and 
performed substantive procedures on calculations supporting the 
disclosure of contingent liabilities;

We have obtained an understanding of the Company's internal 
instructions and procedures in respect of estimation and disclosure 
of contingent liabilities and adopted the following audit procedures:

Based on the above procedures performed, the estimation and 
disclosures of contingent liabilities are considered to be adequate 
and reasonable

- considering the management assessments of those matters that 
are not disclosed as the probability of material outflow is 
considered to be remote

- discussing with management any material developments and 
latest status of legal matters

- examining management's judgements and assessments whether 
provisions are required;

- reviewing the adequacy and completeness of disclosures

- understood and tested the design and operating effectiveness of 
controls as established by the management for obtaining relevant 
information for pending litigation cases;

3

The Company has material uncertain 
tax matters under dispute which 
involves significant judgement to 
determine the possible outcome of 
these disputes.

Uncertain Taxation Matters

We also considered legal precedence and other rulings, including in 
the Company's own case, in evaluating management's position on 
these uncertain tax positions.

We assessed the management's underlying assumptions in 
estimating the tax provision and the possible outcome of the 
disputes.

5

Goods and Service Tax

Other Matter 

 • In certain units, the Company has received advances from its customers, on which GST has not deposited as 
per provisions of Goods and Services Tax Act/Rules, the amount whereof is not ascertainable and 
quantifiable in absence of availability of records.

 • Further Company has availed GST Input (ITC) on the invoices of the Creditors/ Vendors but the same has not 
been surrendered back in case wherein payment has not been made within stipulated timelines under the 
GST. The amount whereof is not ascertainable an quantifiable in absence of due records.

 • In both the above cases, GST liability has not been provided which will impact on the results of Standalone 
Financial Statements, but the amount thereof is not ascertainable/ determinable in absence of availability of 
records.

  Our opinion is not modified with respect of above matters.
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Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors' Report thereon

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 
wrork we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report 
including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's 
Information, but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease the operations or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company's Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view' of the Financial 
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards ) Rules 2015 as 
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively or ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference t financial statements in 
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness ol accounting estimates and 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act and on the basis of such checks of the books and 
records of the Company as we have considered appropriate and according to the information and explanation 
given to us, we give in the "Annexure-A" statement on the matters Specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to 
the extent applicable.

 c) The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone statement of cash flows dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account and with the returns received from the branches, not 
visited by us.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of such communication.

 a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit.

3. (A) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, and subject to matters described in Qualified opinion, Emphasis 
matters , Key Audit matters & Other matters sections stated above we report that:

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicale with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of 
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in 
the financial statements.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of 
accounting in preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have been 
received from the branches not visited by us.

 d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements Comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

2. We are enclosing our report in terms of section 143(5) of the Act, on the basis of such checks of the books and 
records of the Company as we Considered appropriate and according to the information and explanation given to 
us, in the "Annexure-B" on the directions/ sub directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
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 f)  Matters of Qualifications have been stated above under qualified opinion.

 g)  With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over financial Reporting of the company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in "Annexure-C".

specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 
as amended.

 e) Being a Government Company, pursuant to notifications NO. GSR 463 ( E ) dated 05th June 2015 Issued by 
the Ministry of corporate Affairs, Government of India, provisions of sub section(2) of section 164 of the Act, 
are not  applicable to the Company.

(B) As per Notification no. GSR 463(E) dated June 05,2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of 
India, Section 197 of the Act is not applicable to the Government Companies. Accordingly reporting in accordance 
with requirement of provisions of section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable on the Company. With respect to other 
matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

 i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31st March, 2022 on its financial position in 
Standalone Financial Statements -

  Refer note no - 30 of the standalone financial statements.

 ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses.

 iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
by the Company.

 iv. (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed, no 
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities 
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 
shall:

 • provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

  (ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been 
received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

 • directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or

 • provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

 • directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or

 
  (iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 

nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub clause (i) and 
(ii) of Rule 11(e) of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014 contain any material misstatement.

 v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the company hence compliance of section 123 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

Date : 16th January, 2023
Place : Mumbai

For Jain Jagawat Kamdar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN : 122530W

sd/-
CA Agnel Rodrigues

Partner
UDIN : 23156128BGUPWM6149
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report 

I.  Property, Plant & Equipment:

Report on Standalone Financial Statements of Hotel Corporation of India Limited for the year 
ended 31st March 2022

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements' section our report of 
even date)

 (a) (A) The Company has not maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, 
in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. Therefore, reporting under paragraph 
3(ii) (b) of the Order are not applicable.

  Further as per prevailing practice of the Company, Consumption of stocks, stores, crockery, cutlery etc. is 
being worked out by adding opening balances to purchases and deducting therefrom Closing Stock based 
on Physical Verification and hence shortage, misuse, theft, wastage/pilferage etc. is not identified and 
shown as consumption. Closing Stock of inventory are valued at 50% of the Cost of physical inventory held.

ii. Verification from the Inventories

 (B)  The Company does not have any intangible assets, hence reporting under clause i(a)(A) is not applicable 
under CARO 2020.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and 
Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified on rotational basis in every two years. In 
accordance with this programme, plant and equipment were physically verified in FY 2019-2020. In our 
opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is not reasonable having regard to the size of the Company 
and the nature of its assets. Major discrepancies were noticed on such verification such as assets were not 
identifiable in terms of location, quantity, tagging, date of purchase etc.

 (d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not made investments, granted loans and advances in the nature of loans, secured 
or unsecured to companies, limited liability partnership and other parties in respect of which the requisite 
information is as below. The Company has not provided any guarantee or security, to companies, limited liability 
partnership or any other parties during the year.

iii. Investments, Guarantees, Loans and Advances

 (a) The inventory, comprising of raw materials, Stores and Operating Supplies has been physically verified by 
the management only at year end. However, the management has not produced the physical verification 
report for CHDA & CFCD Division. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is not reasonable, and 
procedures and coverage as followed by management were not appropriate.

 (e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami 
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

 (c) According to the information, explanations and records provided to us, the title deeds of all immovable 
properties are held in the name of the Company. In case of four (4) residential flats in sher-e- Punjab Society, 
Andheri (E), Mumbai the deed conveying / transferring the land and the said Building to society is not yet 
executed. (Refer note 2A) 
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 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of the 
Company, the Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees or securities and 
hence reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

vii.  Statutory dues

 (a) During the year the Company has not provided loans advances in the nature of loans stood guarantee or 
provided security to companies firms limited liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the 
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

 (b) During the year the Company has not made any investments in companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or any other parties which are prejudicial to the Company's interest. The Company has not 
provided guarantees provided security and granted loans and advances to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the 
Order is not applicable to t Company

 (c) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies firms Limited Liability 
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c) (d) (e) and (f) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iv. Compliances of Section 185/186 of Companies Act, 2013:

v. Acceptance of Public Deposits:

vi. Maintenance of Cost Records:

 As per the information and explanation provided to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from public 
and outstanding during the year. Hence the Directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of 
Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder are not 
attracted to the Company. Accordingly, Clause 3 (v) of the order is not applicable.

 As per the information and explanation given to us, maintenance of Cost records has not been prescribed by the 
Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(vi) 
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

 (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax ('GST'), Provident fund, 
Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory dues were in arrears as at 
31st March 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, there are some Statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of dispute and the 
forum where dispute is pending are as under:

 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory 
dues including Goods and Services Tax ('GST'), Provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income l ax, Labour 
cess, Professional lax, Property tax, Cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with 
the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of wealth tax and 
Custom duty.
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Nature of
Statute

Nature of
Dues

Amount in
Dispute 
(in Mns)

Period to
which the 
amount 
relates

Forum where dispute
is pending

    Appellate-II

Luxury Tax Tax 2.18 2000-2001 Additional Commissioner

 Less: Paid (0.88)  Sales Tax (Appeals)

Luxury Tax Tax 6.51 2000-2001 Additional Commissioner

 Less: Paid (2.53)  

 Total 13.31  

Luxury Tax Tax 1.98 2002-2003 Commissioner of Sales

 Interest 2.08  Tax (Appeals)

 Total 1.13  

Luxury Tax Tax 0.7 2002-2003 Commissioner of Sales

 Penalty 0.01  

 Penalty 0.1  Tax (Appeals)

 Total 0.08  

 Penalty 0.1  

 Total 1.3  

 Interest 9.33  Sales Tax (Appeals)

Service Tax Tax 2.76 July 2012 to  Commissioner of Central Excise

   March 2013  Appellate-II

 Less: Paid (3.03)  

 Less: Paid (0.63)  

Service Tax Tax 5.11 2013-2014 Commissioner of Central Excise   

Fund Interest 5.98 2015-2016 Delhi

Service Tax Tax 7.83 2015-2016 Commissioner of Central Excise 

   2017)  

    Appellate-II

Service Tax Tax 6.07 2014-2015 Commissioner of Central Excise

   (Up to June  Appellate-II

Service Tax Tax 7.84 2010-2011 to  Commissioner of Central Excise

   2017-2018     Excise Appellate-II

    Appellate-II

    Appellate-II

Service Tax Tax 7.86 2016-2017 Commissioner of Central Excise 

   2013-2014  Appellate-II

Provident  Demand 22.29 2012-2013 to Provident Fund Tribunal -

 Less: Paid (5.98)  

Service Tax Tax 3.92 2014-2015 Commissioner of Central Excise 

Service Tax Tax 0.68 2017-2018  Commissioner of Central Excise

Service Tax Tax 5.52 2015-2016 Commissioner of Central Excise 

    Appellate-II

Service Tax Tax 10.43 2016-2017 &  Commissioner of Central 

 Total 22.29

    Appellate-II



44

 (c) As Auditor, we did not receive any whistle blower complaints during the year 2021-22. Therefore, the 
provisions of Clause 3 (xi) c of the order is not applicable.

 According to the information given to us and based on our examination of Books and records of the Company, the 
Company has not taken any loans or has not borrowed any amount from financial institutions or banks or by issue 
of Debentures. Accordingly clause 3(ix) (a),(b),(c),(d),(e),&(f) of the order are not applicable.

x. Public Offer/ Preferential allotment/ Private Placement:

 (b) As per the information and explanation given lo us, and based on our examination of records, Company has 
not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares under Section 42 and 62 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Accordingly, Clause 3(x)(b) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in 
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. 
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xii.  Provisions applicable to Nidhi Company

 (a) According to information and explanation given lo us, and as represented by the Management and based on 
our examination of the books and records of the Company and in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
practices in India, and considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing no case of frauds 
by the Company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the 
year.

xiii. Compliances of sections 177/188 of CO's Act

 As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not appointed Independent Directors and 
hence to that extent the Company has not complied with the provision of section 177 (2) of the Act, which in turn 
results in non-compliance with section 177(iv) of the Act.

ix. Borrowings from Banks/ Financial Institutions:

 (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

viii. Transactions not recorded in Book:

 According to the information and explanations given lo us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, 
provisions of Clause 3(xii)(a)(b)(c) of the Order, for Nidhi Company, are not applicable to the Company.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub section (12) of Section 143 of 
the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

xi. Fraud by the Company/ on the Company:

 The Company has not complied with the provisions of section 188 of the Act. However, details of the related 
parties have been disclosed in the financial statements which are identified by the Management in terms of IND 
AS 24 "Related Parly Disclosure" and the same are relied upon by us.

 (b) Reports of Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered by us but the closure/compliance of 
observations were still pending by the management. However, rotation of internal auditors was not observed by 
us.

xiv. Internal Audit

 (a) As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company has internal audit system commensurate 
with the size and nature of its business.
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 (b) Company has not conducted any Non- Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. Accordingly, Clause 
3 (XVI) (b) of the order is not applicable.

xv. Non cash transactions with directors

 As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions 
with Directors or persons connected with them and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act are not 
applicable.

xvi.  Applicability of section 45-1A of RBI
 As per the information and explanation given to us-

 (a) Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Accordingly, Clause 3 (XVI) (a) of the order is not applicable.

 (c) Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the Regulations made by Reserve Bank of 
India. Accordingly, Clause (3) (XVI) (c) of the order is not applicable.

 (d) Group has no CIC as part of Group. Accordingly, clause 3 (XVI)(d) of the order is not applicable.

xvii.  Cash Losses:

 The Company has incurred Cash losses to the tune of Rs. 813.34 million in the Financial Year 2021-22, there were 
cash losses of Rs. 922.10 million in the immediately preceding Financial year 2020-21.

xix.  Capability of meeting the liabilities:

xviii.  Resignation of Statutory Auditors:

xx. CSR compliances:

 The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial statements of the 
Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this report.

 During the year there was a change in auditors of the company as the tenure of the previous auditors had 
completed and new appointment has been done as per CAG letter No./CA.V/COY/CENTRAL GOVERNMENT, 
HOTEL C(l) /468 dtd. 19/08/2021. As informed, there have been no issues, objections or concerns raised by the 
said outgoing auditors.

 According to the information and explanation given to us, the sub section (5) of section of 135 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 is not applicable at the standalone level, therefore, reporting under Clause 3(xx) (a) & (b) of the order is 
not applicable.

xxi. Qualifications or adverse remarks in consolidated financial statements

 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and 
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management 
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, we draw attention that the 
Company has incurred a net losses, Company's current liabilities exceeds its total assets and it has accumulated 
losses which has resulted in complete erosion of the net worth of the company. These factors indicate the 
existence of a material uncertainty. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither 
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

Date : 16th January, 2023
Place : Mumbai

For Jain Jagawat Kamdar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN : 122530W

sd/-
CA Agnel Rodrigues

Partner
UDIN : 23156128BGUPWM6149
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Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of even 
date to the member of Hotel Corporation of India on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 
2022.

"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Based on the information and explanations obtained by us, we furnish our comments on the Directions issued by the 
Comptroller and Auditor General of India relating to the accounts of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022.

Sr.
No.

Directions u/s 143(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013

Comments

Whether the funds received/receivables for 
specific schemes from central/ state 
agencies were properly accounted for/ 
utilized as per its terms and conditions? List 
the cases of deviation.

(In case, lender is a government company, 
then this direction is also applicable for 
Statutory Auditor of lender company).

Whether the Company have system in place 
to process all the accounting transactions 
through IT system? If Yes, the implications of 
processing of accounting transactions 
outside IT system on the integrity of the 
a c c o u n t s  a l o n g  w i t h  t h e  fi n a n c i a l 
implications, if any, may be stated.

Whether there is any restructuring of an 
existing loan or cases of waiver/ write off of 
debts/ loans/ interests etc. made by a leader 
to the company due to the Company's 
inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial 
impact may be stated. Whether such cases 
are properly accounted for?

During the year under review, there were no cases of 
restructuring of an existing loan waiver/write off of 
debls/loans/interest and hence the said clause is not 
applicable.

As per the information and explanation given to us, the 
Company has system in place to process all the accounting 
transactions through IT system.

However, the company maintains & updates inventory and 
invoices manually (Msoffice-Excel), which has no direct 
integration with accounting software. Inventory and revenue 
from operations is manually updated in "Tally ERP" software. 
There is material impact on the integrity of the accounts or 
financial implication on the processing of these accounting 
transactions outside IT systems.

The Company has not received funds from any central / state 
agencies during the period under audit.

1

2

3

Date : 16th January, 2023
Place : Mumbai

For Jain Jagawat Kamdar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN : 122530W

sd/-
CA Agnel Rodrigues

Partner
UDIN : 23156128BGUPWM6149
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"ANNEXURE-C" to the Independent Auditors' report 

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements of Hotel Corporation of India for the period 
ended 31 March 2022.

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial statements under Clause (i) 
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the 
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements were established and maintained 
and whether such control Operated effectively in all material respects.

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly Veiled the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 
directors of the company; and

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Hotel Corporation of 
India ("the Company") as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with reference to 
the Standalone Financial Statements based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as "the Act").

A Company's internal financial control with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Financial 
Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal 
financial control with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Our audit involves performing procedure to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Because of the matter 
described in Disclaimer of opinion paragraph below, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to 
provide a basis for an audit opinion on internal financial controls systems over financial reporting of the Company.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (A) (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of 
even date)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

Auditors' Responsibility
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We have considered the qualification and material weaknesses reported above in determining the nature, timing and 
extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the standalone Financial Statements of the Company, and the disclaimer 
material weaknesses does not affect our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company.

Qualified Opinion

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, materials misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with 
reference to the Standalone Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements to future periods may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Material Weaknesses

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not established its internal financial control 
over financial reporting on criteria based on or considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on the Audit of Internal financial controls over financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Because of this reason, we are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a 
basis lor our opinion whether such internal financial control. over financial reporting and whether such internal financial 
controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022.

A material weakness is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial reporting, 
which confirms a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial 
statements will not be prevented or detected on timely basis.

Accordance to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material weaknesses 
have been identified as at 31st March, 2022 with regards to Non-compliance of MSMED Act; Non-recognition of Licence 
fee of earlier year; Nonvaluation of exclusive paintings and accounting thereof, No Maker-Checker practice followed for 
accounting entries; Tendering process not properly implemented & followed; No Role based access restriction in Tally 
ERP; Non-confirmation/ reconciliation/ assessment of Debit/ Credit balances; Books of Accounts of past financial year 
are not freeze/locked; Unlinked receipts, Non-maintenance of proper records of inventory and valuation thereof; 
Automated Attendance not implemented at all the units; Non reconciliation of TDS; Non maintenance of proper records 
of PPE at certain units and nonreconciliation between physical reports and Books of Account; Non maintenance of due 
Secretarial records; Non-recruitment of employees and rotation of duties; No rotation of internal auditors; No direct 
integration of inventory software (eg. champagne) and revenue billing (Portal) Software with that of the accounting 
software "Tally ERP".

Date : 16th January, 2023
Place : Mumbai

For Jain Jagawat Kamdar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN : 122530W

sd/-
CA Agnel Rodrigues

Partner
UDIN : 23156128BGUPWM6149
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MANAGEMENT REPLIES TO THE DRAFT INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF HOTEL CORPORATION 

OF INDIA LIMITED FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22

ANNEXURE	-	B

DRAFT AUDITORS’ REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22 MANAGEMENT COMMENTS

1. Disagreements between Jammu & Kashmir Government & 
Centaur Lake View Hotel  (CLVH)

 In terms of decision of Jammu & Kashmir Governments, the 
functioning of Hotel, Centaur Lake View Hotel (CLVH) was 
inoperative w.e.f. 14.06.2022, for action of J&K Government for the 
sizing of the property. All records and documents were seized by 
the J&K Government due to which we have not audited the 
financial of CLVH, Financial Statements consists of total assets of 
Rs. 405.23 million as at March 31, 2022 and total revenue of 
Rs.82.05 million for the year ended of CLVH. The financial 
information of this unit was produced by the management hence 
we are unable to ascertain the impact thereof in the standalone 
financial statements

 (Refer foot no. 32 of Standalone Financial Statements).

The Company has filed a WP  in the J&K 
High Court challenging the dismissal of 
appeal by the District magistrate and 
also the termination of lease. The matter 
is subjudice and is reserved for 
judgement.

2. Inventory:

 Inventory records and Accounting records are not integrated. The 
Company has practices of maintaining and updating Inventory 
records manually in excel (MS Office). The consumption of stocks, 
stores, crockery, cutlery etc. is being arrived by adding opening 
balances to the purchases and deducting therefrom closing 
balances as per practice being followed from the past. In absence 
of maintenance of proper record of stock movement including but 
not limited to the shortage, scrap, pilferage, misuse or theft etc. we 
were not able to apply other auditing procedures to satisfy 
ourselves on inventory quantities .

 (Refer note no. 06 & foot note no. 47 of the Standalone Financial 
Statements)

 Further the valuation of regular consumed inventory is derived as 
50% cost of the closing inventory at year end, instead of any proper 
standard mechanism for arriving at closing valuation of inventory.

The Company has initiated steps to 
integrate the inventory in Tally for the 3 
locations at Delhi, Mumbai and Srinagar. 
We hope the same would be completed 
by the end of the financial year 2022-23.

 (Refer note no. 18 & foot no.44 of the Standalone Financial 
Statements).

3. MSMED Act compliances

 The Company has classified MSME Vendors registered under 
Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 
2006. The compliances of procurement; provision for interest, if 
any, on outstanding dues to MSME units could not be verified. We 
therefore are unable to determine the delay in making payment to 
such entities and liability of interest and compliance on such 
delayed payments in terms of provisions of MSMED Act.

The MSME units are registered with the 
Company based on in format ion 
provided by the parties during the 
tendering process. Efforts are generally 
made to pay the outstandings of the 
MSMEs in the stipulated time, subject to 
availability of funds.

Instructions have again been issued to 
all the Units to ensure payments to the 
MSMEs within the stipulated time period.
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 Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

 The Company has incurred a net loss of Rs.842.51 million during 
the year ended March 31, 2022 and, as of that date, the Company’s 
current liabilities exceeds its total assets by Rs.265.39 million and it 
has accumulated losses of Rs.7541.61 million which has resulted 
in complete erosion of the net worth of the company. These factors 
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast 
significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. However, based on the assessment conducted by 
the Management and other factors mentioned in the 
aforementioned note, these financial statements have been 
prepared on a going concern basis and no adjustment has been 
made to the carrying value of  the assets and liabilities of the 
Company as at the reporting date. 

 (Refer foot Note no. 52.)

The Company is confident that the 
performance would improve in the FY 
2022-23 

2. Property Plant Equipment (Fixed Assets) are not properly 
maintained and updated at various units. No physical verification of 
PPE has been conducted by the management during the current 
financial year (Last inspection was conducted in FY 2019-20)

 (Refer note no.2A & foot note no. 45 of Standalone Financial 
Statements)

 (Refer note no.15,17 & foot note 30(ix) of Standalone Financial 
Statements).

4. The earlier wage agreement was expired on 31 December, 2006 
and the union has submitted Charters of demands. The Company 
had negotiations between Wage Negotiation Committee of the 
Management and Co-Ordination Committee of HCI Unions and 
after receipt of final approval from the Ministry of Civil Aviation, the 
Memorandum of Understanding dated 08.08.2019 was entered 
into between the unions and the Company for implementing wage 
revision for the Unionized category of employees for a period of 10 
years effective 18.08.2008. The wage revision was implemented in 
the financial year 2019-20. The total estimated provision for 
arrears of wage revision for the unionized category of employees of 
the company as on 31.3.2022 is Rs.146.36 million. The 
Management had announced an interim relief of Rs 5,000/- per 
month per employee for officers effective from 1 January, 2017 
which continues to be paid and has been expensed out through the 

Emphasis of Matter

3. Lease rentals and Turnover levy payable to Airport Authority of 
India (AAI)/Delhi International Airport Limited (DIAL)/ Mumbai 
International Airport Limited (MIAL) are provided in the books of 
accounts of the Company and duly reflected in the financial 
statement. Further In view of the dispute between the Company 
and AAI/DIAL/MIAL, interest on account of outstanding payable is 
not provided but disclosed under the head Contingent Liability and 
are not in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India .

1. The balance confirmations in respect of Trade Payables, Trade 
Receivables, Loans and Advances, Deposits etc. have not been 
received from the parties and hence we are unable to state whether 
these balances are recoverable /payable to the extent stated

In view of the disputes raised with AAI 
interest is being disclosed under 
Contingent Liability as per the decision 
of the Board of Directors.

Physical verification of the PPE will be 
undertaken in the FY 2022-23

Noted for next year

Statement of fact
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Statement of Profit and Loss Account amounting to Rs. 66.81 
million as on 31.3.2022. As and when wage revision is approved, 
this amount would be adjusted against arrears payable, if any, for 
which employee wise details have been maintained separately in 
the books of accounts. Further, the calculations for arrears payable 
to employees effective 08.08.2008 are in progress. The 
management is of the opinion that in case the wages provided is 
inadequate then the provision for differential liability will be made in 
the year it is finalized.

 ii. Since the Company has not appointed Independent Directors, 
the Company has not complied with the provisions of Section 
177(2) and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) 
Rules, 2014 as regards the composition of the Audit 
Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
of the Board.

5. The Company has not complied with certain provision of the Act. As 
a consequence thereof:

 iii. The above non-compliance was also reported by the previous 
auditors in their Auditors’ report dated 4th August, 2021 for 
financial year 2020-21.

 ii. Laying down Standard Operating Procedures with regard to 
timely accounting of all transactions to ensure that proper 
books of accounts are maintained. (Refer note no. 47 and 48)

 iii. The above non-compliance was also reported by the previous 
auditors in their Auditors’ report dated 4th August, 2021 for 
financial year 2020-21.

 i. The Company has not appointed Independent Directors as 
required under the provisions of Section 149(4) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and 
hence, no meeting of the Independent Directors could be held 
during the Audit Period.

7. Fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities is arrived 
based upon best information available or provided by the 
management. We have relied upon the management information 
for fair valuation on the absence of other required information.

6. The Company has internal control system which need 
strengthening for followings:

 i. Strengthening the internal audit process so as to ensure 
adequate coverage of all the areas and ensure effective 
internal controls at all units of the Company.

Independent Directors have not been 
appointed

Statement of fact

Noted

Other Matter

Goods and Service Tax

• In certain units, the Company has received advances from its 
customers, on which GST has not been deposited as per 
provisions of Goods and Services Tax Act/Rules, the amount 
whereof is not ascertainable and quantifiable in absence of 
availability of records.

The point raised by the auditors pertains 
to advances for  Banquet functions at the 
hotels  which is not significant. However, 
as pointed out, this will be taken up with 
the GST Consultant and would be sorted 
out while filing the annual return for the 
FY 2021-22.
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• Further Company has availed GST Input (ITC) on the invoices of 
the Creditors/ Vendors but the same has not been surrendered 
back in case wherein payment has not been made within stipulated 
timelines under the GST. The amount  whereof is not  
ascertainable and quantifiable in absence of due records.

• In both the above cases, GST liability has not been provided which 
will impact on the results of Standalone Financial Statements, but 
the amount thereof is not ascertainable/ determinable in absence 
of availability of records.

This will be taken up with the GST 
Consultant and would be sorted out 
while filing the annual return for the FY 
2021-22.

Annexure A 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company 
has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant 
and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified 
on rotational basis in every  two  years.  In accordance with this 
programme, plant and  equipment  were  physically  verified  in FY 
2019-2020. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is not 
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature 
of its assets.

Major  discrepancies  were  noticed  on  such  verification  such  as  
assets  were  not identifiable in terms of location, quantity, tagging, 
date of purchase etc.

i. Compliances of sections 177/188 of CO’s Act

 The Company has not complied with the provisions of section 
188 of the Act. However, details of the related parties have 
been disclosed in the financial statements which are 
identified by the Management in terms of IND AS 24 "Related 
Party Disclosure" and the same are relied upon by us.

 As per the information and explanation given to us, the 
Company has not appointed Independent Directors and 
hence to that extent the Company has not complied with the 
provision of section 177 (2) of the Act, which in turn results in 
non-compliance with section 177(iv) of the Act.

According to the information, explanations and records provided to us, 
the title deeds of immovable  properties are  held in the name of the  
Company except relating to four (4) residential flats in Sher –e- 
Punjab Society, Andheri, Mumbai wherein conveyance deed in 
respect thereof are pending to be executed by the society. (Refer note 
2A)

ii. Internal Audit

(a) As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company  
has  internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature 
of its business.

(b) Reports of Internal Auditors for the period under audit were 
considered by us but the closure/compliance of observations 
were still pending by the management. However, rotation of 
internal auditors was not observed by us.

The physical verification of the PPE is 
scheduled for the FY 2022-23 and would 
be completed by 31.03.2023.

The Company is in the process of 
undertaking the valuation of  the flats in 
FY 2022-23.

The Company has called for tender for 
the appointment of Internal Auditors in 
FY 2022-23.
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Annexure C 

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

Accordance to the information and explanations given to us and based 
on our audit, the following material weaknesses have been identified 
as at 31st March, 2022 with regards to :- 

Non-compliance of MSMED Act; Non-recognition of Licence fee of 
earlier year; Non- valuation of exclusive paintings and accounting 
thereof, No Maker-Checker practice followed for accounting entries; 
Tendering process not properly implemented & followed; No Role 
based access restriction in Tally ERP; Non-confirmation/ 
reconciliation/ assessment of Debit/ Credit balances; Books of 
Accounts of past financial year are not freeze/locked; Unlinked 
receipts, Non-maintenance of proper records of inventory and 
valuation thereof; Automated Attendance not implemented at all the 
units; Non reconciliation of TDS; Non maintenance of proper records 
of PPE at certain units and non- reconciliation between physical 
reports and Books of Account; Non maintenance of due Secretarial 
records; Non-recruitment of employees and rotation of duties; No 
rotation of internal auditors of Delhi Units; No direct integration of 
inventory software (eg. champagne) and revenue billing (Portal) 
Software with that of the accounting software “Tally ERP”.

We have considered the disclaimer and material weaknesses 
reported above in determining the nature, timing and extent of 
audit tests applied in our audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements of the Company, and the disclaimer material 
weaknesses does not affect our opinion on the Standalone 
Financial Statements of the Company

Material Weaknesses

The inventory software in Tally is being 
utilized in Centaur Srinagar and Mumbai 
Units . It is currently being implemented 
in FY 2022-23 in Delhi

The inherent weaknesses pointed out in 
the audit of ICFR are being looked into. 

As regards the concept of maker / 
checker in Tally, all physical vouchers 
prepared by the Accounts personnel  do 
have a maker / checker concept . 
However, in Tally, as suggested, the role 
based access is being reviewed. 
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BALANCE SHEET as at 31st March 2022
₹ in Millions

Particulars
Note
No. 

As at 
31st March 2022

As at 
31st March 2021

ASSETS   
(1)   Non Current Assets   
     (a)  Property, Plant and Equipment 2A  188.79   196.85 
 (b)  Intangible assets 2B  -    

     (d)  Right to Use an Asset 3   226.79   293.96 
     (c)  Capital Work in Progress 2C  8.80   -   

           (i) Other Non current financial assets 4   3.26   7.17 

Total Current Assets   410.22   676.71 

       (i) Short term lease liability 17   578.51   646.31 

          Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises   10.36   12.24 

   (a)  Equity share capital 13   1,376.00   1,376.00 

 (a)  Inventory 6   11.42   11.89 

 Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises   24.29   39.43 

 1.  Non Current Liabilities   

       (ii) Trade payables 18   

(2)  Current Assets    

          (i)  Trade receivables 7   79.67   338.16 

    (d)  Other Current Assets 12   106.07   94.16 

   (b)  Provisions 16  494.08 534.81
  Other non-current liabilities   
Total Non Current Liabilities   5,873.22   5,296.98 

       (ii) Long term lease liability 15  258.34 369.29

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   

         (iii)  Bank Balances other than cash and cash Equivalents 9   79.79   80.29 

       (i)  Borrowings 14  5,029.59 4,392.89

      (iii) Other current financial liabilities 19   245.31   248.34 

     (e)  Other Non Current assets 5   17.37   17.74 

    (b)  Financial Assets   

          (ii)  Cash and cash equivalents 8   52.47   37.03 

Total Non Current Assets   445.00   515.71 

 (a)  Financial liabilities   

   (c)  Provisions 21   107.16   101.43 

TOTAL ASSETS   855.22   1,192.42 

     (e)  Financial Assets   

         (iv)  Other current financial assets 10   28.39   21.77 

  Equity   

   (b)  Other equity   (7,514.61)  (6,672.10)
 Total Equity   (6,138.61)  (5,296.10)
Liabilities   

2. Current liabilities   

 (c)  Current tax assets (net) 11   52.40   93.41 

   (a)  Financial liabilities   

          Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 

  (b) Other current liabilities 20   154.99  143.79 

Total Current Liabilities   1,120.61   1,191.54 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   855.22   1,192.42 
Significant accounting policies 1 

The accompanying notes 1 to 54 form an integral part of this financials    

As per our report of even date 
For JAIN JAGAWAT KAMDAR & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 122530W

CA Agnel Rodrigues
Partner
Membership No: 156128

Place  : Mumbai
Date   :  05-12-2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   
of  HOTEL CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED   
 
sd/- 
Vikram Dev Dutt  
Chairman 
DIN 0205541  
 
sd/- 
Deepak Khullar  
Chief Executive Officer  

Place  :New Delhi  
Date   :   30.11.2022 

sd/-
Rubina Ali
Nominee Director
  DIN : 0845990 

sd/-
Thrity Dalal
  Chief Financial Officer 
  Membership no. FCA 034616
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2022
₹ in Millions

Particulars Note
For the year ended     
31st March, 2022 

For the year ended
31st March, 2021

EXPENSES   

Employee Benefits 25  447.76   443.06 

Other income 23  89.59   24.32 

Revenue from operations 22  262.77   225.29 

INCOME   

Total income   352.36   249.60 

Continuing operations   

      

Cost of raw material consumed 24  60.92   43.15 

Other Expenses 27  161.32   311.22 

Total Expenses   1,200.47   1,223.32 

   

   Deferred Tax   -     -   

Finance Cost 26  501.30   381.81 

   Current Tax   -     -   

   

a. Items that will not be classified to Profit & Loss    

Loss before Tax   (848.12)  (973.72)

Profit/(Loss) for the year   (848.12)  (973.72)

Add (Less)- Short (Excess) Provision of Earlier Years   -     -   

Tax Expense   

   

Other Comprehensive Income   

Depreciation / Amortisation Expenses 3 & 4  29.17   44.09 

    (i) Re-measurement of the defined benefit plans 28  5.61   7.53 

   

 Diluted     (61.23)  (70.22)

   

 Basic     (61.23)  (70.22)

Significant accounting policies 2

Total Comprehensive Income for the year   (842.51)  (966.19)

   

 Earning per Equity Share     

The accompanying notes 1 to 54 form an integral part of this financials   

As per our report of even date 
For JAIN JAGAWAT KAMDAR & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 122530W

CA Agnel Rodrigues
Partner
Membership No: 156128

Place  : Mumbai
Date   :  05-12-2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   
of  HOTEL CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED   
 
sd/- 
Vikram Dev Dutt  
Chairman 
DIN 0205541  
 
sd/- 
Deepak Khullar  
Chief Executive Officer  

Place  :New Delhi  
Date   :   30.11.2022 

sd/-
Rubina Ali
Nominee Director
  DIN : 0845990 

sd/-
Thrity Dalal
  Chief Financial Officer 
  Membership no. FCA 034616
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March 2022

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(A) Equity Share Capital   

No. of shares ₹ in Millions 

As at 31st March, 2022 1,37,60,000   13,760.00 

As at 1st April, 2020 1,37,60,000   13,760.00 

As at 31st March, 2021 1,37,60,000   13,760.00 

Change in equity share capital during the year  -   

Change in equity share capital during the year  -   

(B) Other Equity 

General 
Reserve

Balance as at 1 April 2021  -     -     (6,672.10)  (6,672.10)

Loss for the year  -     -     (848.12)  (848.12)

Balance as at 31st March, 2022  -     -     (7,514.61)  (7,514.61)

Other comprehensive income (net of tax)  -     -     5.61   5.61 

(Rs. In Millions)

Particulars
General Reserve 
Amalgamation

Retained 
Earnings

Total

As per our report of even date 
For JAIN JAGAWAT KAMDAR & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 122530W

CA Agnel Rodrigues
Partner
Membership No: 156128

Place  : Mumbai
Date   :  05-12-2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   
of  HOTEL CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED   
 
sd/- 
Vikram Dev Dutt  
Chairman 
DIN 0205541  
 
sd/- 
Deepak Khullar  
Chief Executive Officer  

Place  :New Delhi  
Date   :   30.11.2022 

sd/-
Rubina Ali
Nominee Director
  DIN : 0845990 

sd/-
Thrity Dalal
  Chief Financial Officer 
  Membership no. FCA 034616
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March 2022
₹ in Millions

Particulars
For the year ended     
31st March, 2022 

For the year ended
31st March, 2021

 Net profit before tax  (848.12)  (973.72)

 Adjustments:  

 Adjustments in Other Equity and Other Comprehensive Income  5.61   7.53 

 Interest received on fixed deposits  (12.24)  (9.43)

 Finance cost  501.30   381.81 

 Operating cash flow before working capital changes  (324.30)  (550.73)

 (Profit)/Loss on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment  (0.01)  (1.00)

 Decrease / (Increase) in Trade Receivables  258.49   113.60 

 Decrease / (Increase) in Other Bank Balances  0.50   (16.73)

 (Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets  (11.91)  (5.85)

 (Increase)/Decrease in Other Non-Current Financial Assets  3.91   (2.38)

 (Increase) in Other Financial Assets  (6.62)  174.98 

 Depreciation and amortisation  29.17   44.09 

 (Increase)/Decrease in Other Non-Current Assets  0.37   (0.06)

 Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities (Current)  (3.03)  10.05 

 Decrease / (Increase) in Inventory  0.47   2.31 

 (Decrease)Increase  in Short-Term Provisions  5.73   101.43 

A. Cash flows from operating activities  

 Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities  11.20   (34.16)

 (Decrease)Increase  in Long-Term Provisions  (40.73)  (125.46)

 (Decrease)Increase  in Trade Payables  (17.03)  2.06 

 Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities (Non Current)  

 Increase/(Decrease) in Other Non Current Liabilities  

1.  The Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting 
Standard -7 ('IND AS-7') on cash flow statement. 

B. Cash flows from investing activities  

 Income taxes paid   40.81   44.50 

 Net cash flow generated from financing activities [C]  47.87   254.67 

 (Decrease)/Increase  in Borrowings 636.70 596.45

 Interest received on fixed deposits  12.24   9.43 

C. Cash flows from financing activities  

 Interest Paid  (501.30)  (381.81)

 Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Lease Liability  67.80   29.22 

 Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Refer note below)  52.47   37.02 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Refer note below)  37.02   62.82 

 Cash generated from operations  (122.95)  (330.95)

 Net cash flow generated from operating activities [A]  (82.14)  (286.45)

 (Increase)/Decrease in Capital Work In Progress  (8.80)  2.44 

 Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  15.45   (25.80)

 Increase in Property,Plant and Equipment  (7.09)  (7.08)

 Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Lease Liability  (19.74)  10.82 

 Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment   1.18 

 Net cash (used) in investing activities [B]  49.72   5.97 

 (Increase)/Decrease in Right to Use an Asset  53.37  

Sub notes:  
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Particulars  31st March 2022 31st March, 2021

   

 Cash in Hand  0.09   0.02 

 Bank deposits held as margin money against bank guarantee 

 Total  52.47   37.03 

2 Components of cash and bank balances:  

 Balance with bank  

 and other Commitments, maturity less than 3 months  

 a) Other Balance  31.78   34.08 

 Bank deposits with original maturity less than 3 months  20.60   2.93 

As per our report of even date 
For JAIN JAGAWAT KAMDAR & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 122530W

CA Agnel Rodrigues
Partner
Membership No: 156128

Place  : Mumbai
Date   :  05-12-2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   
of  HOTEL CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED   
 
sd/- 
Vikram Dev Dutt  
Chairman 
DIN 0205541  
 
sd/- 
Deepak Khullar  
Chief Executive Officer  

Place  :New Delhi  
Date   :   30.11.2022 

sd/-
Rubina Ali
Nominee Director
  DIN : 0845990 

sd/-
Thrity Dalal
  Chief Financial Officer 
  Membership no. FCA 034616
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NOTE 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION 

Hotel Corporation of India Limited, (a Government of India Company) is a company incorporated in India, registered 
under the provisions of Companies Act. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of owning, operating & 
managing Hotels and Flight Caterings. It is a subsidiary of “AI Assets Holding Limited” (AIAHL) w.e.f. 11.01.2022. The 
registered office of the Company is situated at Centaur Hotel, IGI Airport, New Delhi 110037.

NOTE 2: BASIS OF PREPARATION, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 
JUDGEMENTS, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND RECENT ACCOUNTING 
PRONOUNCEMENTS 

The financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

 In accordance with the notification, dated February 16, 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the 
company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 read with Rule 4A of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, and the relevant provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (collectively, “Ind ASs”) with effect from April 1, 2017 the Company is required to prepare its financial 
statements in accordance with Ind AS for the year ended March 31, 2018. These financial statements as and for the 
year ended March 31, 2018 (the “Ind AS Financial Statements”) were the first financial statements the Company 
has prepared in accordance with Ind AS and financial statements for the year ended March 31st 2022 is also 
prepared on the same basis.

 a) Impairment of Assets.

iii. Critical accounting estimates /judgments:

 The assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating 
cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule – III to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1– “Presentation of Financial 
Statements”.

ii. Basis of measurement:

 i.  certain financial assets, liabilities and contingent considerations that are measured at fair value;
 These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for:

 b) Measurement of useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment and the assessment as to 
which components of the cost may be capitalized.

 

i. Basis of Preparation and Compliance with IND AS

 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind-AS requires the Management to make estimates, 
judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. The actual 
result may differ from such estimates. Estimates and changes are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future period.

 For all period upto and including the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company prepared its financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP) and complied with the accounting 
standard (previous GAAP) as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as amended to the extent applicable, and the presentation requirements of 
the Companies Act, 2013. 

 ii.  assets held for sale- measured at fair value less cost to sell; and 

 d) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets.

 Significant areas of estimation and judgments (as stated in the respective Accounting Policies) that have the most 
significant effect on the Financial statements are as follows:

 iii.  defined benefit plans – plan assets, measured at fair value.

 c) Basis of classification of Non-Current Assets held for sale.

 e) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
(Rupees in Millions except otherwise stated)
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iv. Operating cycle & Classification of Current & Non-Current:

vi. Significant Accounting Policies:

 A. Inventories (IND AS – 2)

 g) Measurement of Fair Values and Expected Credit Loss (ECL).
 h) Judgment is required to ascertain whether it is probable or not that an outflow of resources embodying 

economic benefits will be required to settle the taxation disputes and legal claim.

 f) Judgment required to ascertain lease classification.

v. Estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19: 

 Various steps have been initiated by the Company such renovations of existing rooms, tapping corporate 
customers & others ways. In developing the assumptions and estimates relating to the future uncertainties in the 
economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company as at the date of approval of these Financial 
statements has used internal and external sources of information and based on current estimates, expects to 
recover the carrying amounts of these assets. The impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that 
estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements and the Company will continue to closely monitor 
any material changes to future economic conditions.

 The outbreak of corona virus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant disturbance and 
slowdown of economic activity. The Company's operation and revenue during the year were also impacted due to 
COVID-19. The lockdowns and restrictions imposed on various activities due to COVID – 19 pandemic have posed 
challenges to the business of the Company. This has resulted in low occupancies of our hotels at Delhi and Srinagar 
and flight kitchens at Mumbai and Delhi. With the lifting of the lockdown restrictions, the Company has re-opened 
the hotels in the non-containment zones, after establishing thorough and well-rehearsed safety protocols. 

 Presentation of assets and liabilities in the financial statement has been made based on current / non-current 
classification provided under the Companies Act 2013. The Company being in service sector, there is no specific 
operating cycle; however, 12 months period has been adopted as “the Operating Cycle” in-terms of the provisions of 
Schedule III to the Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, current liabilities and current assets include the current 
portion of non-current financial liabilities and assets.

  Inventories primarily consist of soft furnishing (linen), cutlery / crockery and stores and spares. Cost of 
inventories comprise all costs of purchase after deducting non-refundable rebates and discounts and all other 
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition and is determined on weighted 
average basis.

  The valuation of Inventory of regular consumed inventory is derived as 50% cost lower of the closing inventory 
at year end.

  Soft furnishing (linen) and Stores & Supplies (cutlery & crockery) are being valued at lower of cost or NRV and 
written off to the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when issued for consumption. 

 B. Cash Flow Statement (IND AS–7)

  Cash flows are reported using indirect method as set out in Ind AS-7 “Statement of Cash Flows” whereby 
profit/(loss) before tax is adjusted for the effect of transactions of non cash nature and any deferrals or accruals 
of past or future cash receipt to payments. The Cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities of the 
company is segregated based on available information.

  Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability 
during the year. Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they 
relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, in which case, the 
current and deferred tax are also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, respectively.

 C. Income Taxation (IND AS - 12)

  Expendables & Consumables are charged off at the time of initial issue, except those meant for repairs of 
repairable items which are expensed off when the work order is closed on completion of repair work.
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  Current Tax
  Current tax expenses are accounted for in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate. Provision 

for current income tax is made for the tax liability payable on taxable income after considering tax allowances, 
deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws. 
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

  Deferred Tax 

   Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by deducting the 
proceeds of disposal from the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognized net 
within other income/other expenditure in statement of profit and loss.

   The residual value, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipments are reviewed 
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

   Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs 
and maintenance, are normally charges to the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the costs 
are incurred. Major overhaul expenditure is capitalized if the recognition criteria are met.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities 
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority, but they intend to settle current tax 
liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

   Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for 

  Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the assets are realized or 
liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

  Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used 
for taxation purposes.

  ii. Capital work in progress

 D. Property, Plant and Equipment: ( PPE) ( IND AS - 16)

   Further physical verification of Assets is done on a rotational basis so that every asset is verified in every two 
years and the discrepancies observed in the course of the verification adjusted in the year in which report is 
submitted and finalized.

   Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in capital work in progress account. At the point when the 
asset is capable of operating in the manner intended by management, the cost of construction is transferred 
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment.

  Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized 
for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that is probable 
that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. The carrying amount of deferred tax 
assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

  i. Property, Plant and Equipment

  iii. Depreciation / Amortization:

    Property, plant and equipment are carrying at deemed cost from the date of transition.
 

   The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including non refundable 
duties and taxes, attributable borrowing cost and any other directly attributable costs of brining an asset to 
working condition and location for its intended use. It also includes the present value of expected cost for 
decommissioning and removing of an asset and restoring the site after its use, if the recognition criteria for a 
provision are met.

  The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the 
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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 E. Employee Retirement Benefits( IND AS - 19)

impairment. Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

   Carpets purchased initially for a new unit/major renovation are capitalized as Fixed Assets in the year of 
purchase and depreciated on the Straight Line Method as specified in Para d above. Carpets purchased in 
the subsequent years are being written off as Soft furnishings in the year of purchase.

   Depreciation is provided on straight-line method over the useful life of the Property, plant and equipment as 
prescribed in the Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013 (except as otherwise stated), keeping a residual 
value of 5% of the original cost. Depreciation method, useful life and residual values are reviewed by the 
Management at each year end.

   Cost incurred on major renovation/refurbishment, modernization/conversion are depreciated over the 
useful life and / or period of lease as the case may be.

   Kitchen utensils purchased for the first time for a new unit are written off equally in four years. Any additions 
in the subsequent years are written off in the year of purchase.

   Heavy curtains are written off in the year of issue.

  The Retirement Benefits to the employees comprise of “Defined Contribution Plans” and “Defined Benefit 
Plans”. 

  a) Defined Contribution Plans consist of contributions to Employees Provident Fund and Employees State 
Insurance Scheme. PF and ESI dues are regularly deposited with government authorities.

  b) Defined Benefit Plans which are not funded, consist of Gratuity, and Post Retirement Medical Benefits and 
other benefits. The liability for these benefits is actuarially determined under the Projected Unit Credit 
Method at the year end as per Indian Laws.

   The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for 
determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on 
Government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity periods approximating to the terms of 
related obligations. Re -measurements gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes 
in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in Other Comprehensive 
Income. They are included in “Other Equity” in the “Statement of Changes in Equity” and in the Balance 
Sheet. 

  c) Other Long-Term Employee Benefits in the form of Leave Encashment are accounted as other long-term 
employee benefits. The Company’s net obligation in respect of Leave Encashment is the amount of benefit 
to be settled in future that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and previous 
years. The benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The obligation is measured on the basis of 
an actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Re-measurements are recognized in 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

 F. Foreign Currency Transactions( IND AS - 21)

  The management has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which the company 
operates i.e. functional currency, to be Indian Rupees (Rs). The financial statements are presented in Indian 
Rupees, which is company’s functional and presentation currency. 

   Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from settlement or curtailments are 
recognized immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss as past service cost. 

  d) Short Term Benefits : Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected 
to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related 
service, are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are 
measured at the amounts expected to be incurred when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are 
presented as Short Term employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

  Foreign Currency Monetary Items:

  i) Foreign currency Revenue and Expenditure transactions relating to Foreign Stations are recorded at 
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  Borrowing cost that are directly attributable to acquisition, construction of qualifying assets including capital 
work–in-progress are capitalized, as part of the cost of assets, up to the date of commencement of commercial 
use of the assets.

 H. Earnings Per Share (IND AS - 33)

  Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, 
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the 
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 

   Exchange variation is not considered at the year-end in respect of Debts and Loans & Advances for which 
doubtful provision exists since they are not expected to be realized.  

  The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that carrying amount of its 
non– financial asset has been impaired. If any such indication exists, the provision for impairment is made in 
accordance with IND AS-36.

  Basic earnings per share: Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year 
post tax attributable to equity shareholders by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the period. 

  Diluted earnings per share: Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year 
post tax attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
including equity shares which would have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares 
unless they are considered anti-dilutive in nature. 

 G. Borrowing Cost: (IND AS - 23)

 I. Impairment of Assets ( IND AS – 36)

  Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment periodically including whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is 
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 

established monthly rates (based on published IATA rates). Interline settlement with Airlines for 
transportation is carried out at the exchange rate published by IATA for respective month.

  ii) Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the exchange rate circulated by Foreign Exchange 
Dealers Association of India (FEDAI). Gains/ (losses) arising on account of realization/settlement of foreign 
exchange transactions and on translation of monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

  iii)  In respect of long term foreign currency monetary items originating before 1st April, 2016, the effect of 
exchange differences arising on settlement or reporting of long term monetary items at the rates different 
from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, or reported in previous financial 
statements, is accounted as addition or deduction to the cost of the assets so far as it relates to acquisition of 
depreciable capital assets and is depreciated over the balance useful life of the concerned asset and in 
other cases such difference is accumulated by  transfer to “Foreign Currency Monetary Items Translation 
Difference Account” to be amortized over the balance period of such long term Assets or Liability. 

  Other borrowing costs are expensed in the year in which they are incurred

  If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, 
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment 
loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

  When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is 
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the 
asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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  If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date 
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the 
statement of profit and loss.

 K. Non- Current Assets Held For Sale and Discontinued Operations (IND AS - 105)

 J. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities / Capital Commitments & Contingent Assets (IND AS - 37)

  Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company. A contingent asset is disclosed, when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.  

  Provisions involving a substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present 
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of 
resources. 

  Contingent liabilities are disclosed by way of a note in respect of possible obligations that may arise from past 
events but their existence is confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the Company.

  Assets are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale in its 
present condition than through continuing use.  The net book value of such assets, are transferred from the 
block of fixed assets to “Assets held for Sale” at lower of the carrying value or Fair Value less cost to sell. Assets 
classified as held for sales are presented separately in the balance sheets.  No depreciation is provided, once 
the assets is transferred to Assets Held for Sale.

 L. Intangible Assets (IND AS – 38)

  Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets 
recognized as income or expenses in the Statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

  A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.

  a. Financial Assets

   (I)  Classification

 M. Financial Instruments (IND AS – 109)

    The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value 
through other comprehensive income or fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss on the basis of 
its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flows characteristics of 
the financial asset.

   (ii) Initial recognition and measurement

  Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost; following initial recognition intangible 
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss (if any). The 
useful lives of intangible assets is assessed for three years. 

  The costs relating to annual license fees, development, updation, implementation and maintenance of 
computer software are charged to revenue account. 

   (iii)  Subsequent measurement

    All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded 
at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the 
acquisition of the financial asset.

    For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in below categories:

    (a)  Financial assets carried at amortized cost: A financial asset other than derivatives and specific 
investments, is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose 
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of 
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   (vi) Write-off

   (iv)  De-recognition

    The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement 
and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are trade receivables or contract revenue 
receivables and all lease receivables etc.

   (i) Initial recognition and measurement

   (iii) Subsequent measurement

   (v) Impairment of other financial assets

    The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost, except for 
financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss. Such liabilities, including 
derivatives shall be subsequently measured at fair value.

    The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that 
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that 
the counterparty does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to 
repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be 
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of 
amounts due.

    All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities include trade 
and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, and derivative financial 
instruments.

   (ii) Classification

    a)  Financial liabilities at amortized cost: 

    (b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income: A financial asset comprising 
specific investment is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it 
is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash 
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding. The Company has made an irrevocable election for its investments which are 
classified as equity instruments to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other 
comprehensive income based on its business model.

  b. Financial Liabilities

     After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognized in 
Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR 
amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium 
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included 
as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

    A financial asset is primarily derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have 
expired or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset

     Financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss include financial liabilities held 
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred 
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category comprises derivative financial 
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge 

    (c)  Financial assets at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss: A financial asset comprising 
derivatives which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued 
through profit or loss.

    b)  Financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss: 

the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

    The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below.
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  Level 2:  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
directly or indirectly observable.

relationships as defined by IND AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as 
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on 
liabilities held for trading are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.  

     A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled 
or expires.

    (iv)  De-recognition

    (v) Offsetting of financial instruments
     Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance 

sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an 
intention to sell on a net basis, to realize the assets and sell the liabilities simultaneously

 N. Fair Value Measurement (IND AS - 113)
  The Company measures financial instruments and specific investments (other than subsidiary, joint venture 

and associates), at fair value at each balance sheet date.

  All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as below, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole:

  Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

  For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the balance sheet on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting 
period.

  Level 3:  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable.

  For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 
explained above.

 O. Revenue Recognition ( IND AS –115)
  Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled 

in exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of the goods or service 
to the customer. Revenue from sales of goods of rendering of services is net of Indirect taxes, returns and 
discounts.

  Income from operations
  a) Rooms, Food and Beverage & Banquets: Revenue is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to 

the performance obligation. Revenue includes room  revenue, food and beverage sale and banquet 
services which is recognized once the rooms are occupied, food and beverages are sold and banquet 
services have been provided as per the contract with the customer. Credit notes received from vendors are 
recognized on acceptance of claim/receipt of credit note.

  b) Space and shop rentals: Rentals basically consists of rental revenue earned from letting of spaces for retails 
and office at the properties. Theses contacts for rentals are generally of short terms in nature. Revenue is 
recognized in the period in which services are  being rendered.

   i)  Scrap Sales, reimbursement to employees towards medical, leave pay, claims of interest from suppliers, 
other staff claims etc., are recognized on cash basis.

   ii) Liability / claims for amounts payable towards dues are recognized to the extent of claims / invoices 
received

  c) Other allied services : In relation to laundry income, communication income, health, club income and other 
allied services, the revenue has been recognized by reference to the time of service rendered. Gain or loss 
arising out of sale/scrap of PPE over the net depreciated value is taken to Statement of Profit & Loss as 
Non-Operating Revenue or Expenses.

  d)  Other Items:
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  A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or service transferred to the customer. If the 
Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or 
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration that is conditional.

 I. Interest

  Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the amount is established.

  To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses 
whether: 

 a) Contract assets

 ii. Dividend 

 Contract balance (effective from April 1, 2018)

  A contract is, or contains a lease when it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of 
time in exchange for consideration. 

  Company as a lessee

  The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement date, and less 
any lease incentives received. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are also adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. Unless the 
Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased assets or renewal of the leases at the end of 
the lease term, recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated to a residual value over the shorter of their 
estimated useful life or lease term. 

 

  Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset if the 
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option and any lease 
modification. Payments which are ‘in-substance fixed’ are charged against the lease liability. 

  Lease liability and Right of Use Assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease 
payments are presented as follows in the Company’s statement of cash flows: 

 b) Contract liabilities 

  •  short-term lease payments, payments for leases of low-value assets and variable lease payments that are 
not included in the measurement of the lease liabilities are presented within cash flows from operating activities; 

 A  contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has received 
consideration form the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or 
services to the customers, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are 
recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract

  Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis using the effective interest rate method.

  (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the 
lease and 

  At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a 
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 
twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the 
Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
lease. Lease contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates payments 
in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative prices and applies the lease 
accounting model only to lease components. 

  (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

  The lease term includes periods subject to extension options which the Company is reasonably certain to 
exercise and excludes the effect of early termination options where the Company is not reasonably certain that 
it will exercise the option. 

 P. Leases (IND AS - 116)

  (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset 

  The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease 
term. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at 
the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. 
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  Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 
2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 
Leases which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 Leases and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets 
out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and 
lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. The Company has 
adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning April 1, 2019 and applied the standard to its 
leases, prospectively with the effect of initially applying the standard, recognised on the date of initial application 
(April 1, 2019). Accordingly, the Company has not restated comparative information, instead, the prospective 
effect of initially applying this standard has been recognised as on April 1, 2019.

  For transition, the Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases which are expiring 
within 12 months from the date of transition by class of asset and leases for which the underlying asset is of low 
value on a lease-by-lease basis.

  •  payments for the interest element of recognised lease liabilities are included in ‘interest paid’ within cash 
flows from operating activities; and 

  •  payments for the principal element of recognised lease liabilities are presented within cash flows from 
financing activities

  Transition to INDAs 116

 Q. Manufacturer’s Credit (Cash &Non Cash Incentives)
 
  Manufacturer’s credit entitlements are accounted for on accrual basis and credited to ‘Incidental Revenues’ by 

contra debit to ‘Advances’; when the credit entitlement are used, the ‘advances’ are adjusted against the liability 
created for either acquiring an asset or incurring an expenditure. 

 R. Cash And Cash Equivalents
  Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity 

of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

  The Board of Directors assesses the financial performance and position of the group and makes strategic 
decisions and have identified business segment as its primary segment.

  Additional Regulatory Information pursuant to Amendment in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 

  c) The Company has not revalued any of its Property Plant & Equipment during the Year.

 S. Segment Reporting

  f) The Company does  hold  Capital-work-in-progress as on 31st March. Accordingly, reporting on Capital 

  e) The Company has not advanced loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and 
the related parties.

  Cash Flow Statement, as per Ind AS 7, is prepared using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss for the period 
is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a noncash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future 
operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing 
cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated.

 T. Cash Flow Statement

  d) The Company does not hold any Intangible Assets. Accordingly, reporting on revaluation of Intangible 
Assets is not applicable

  Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 
operating decision maker.

  a) The Company hold immovable properties with clear title deed. Accordingly, disclosure pertaining to the title 
deeds of immovable properties that are not held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date is 
not applicable.

  b) The Company does not hold any Investment Property. Accordingly, reporting on fair valuation of Investment 
Property is not applicable.
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Capital Work in Progress ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2022 (As derived manually 
billwise and partywise by the management) 

Work-in-progress ageing and completion schedule is stated below.

Capital Work in 
Progress as on 
March 31, 2022

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Projects in progress 8.80     8.80

Projects temporarily suspended     -

Total 8.80  - - - 8.80

Capital Work in Progress ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2021 (As derived manually bill 
wise and partywise by the management) 

Capital Work in 
Progress as on 
March 31, 2022

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Total 0 0 0 0 0

Projects temporarily suspended     -

Projects in progress -    -

   (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Company (ultimate beneficiaries) or

   (a) directly o r indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or

  m) The Company does not have any investment in subsidiaries. Accordingly, Compliance with the number of 
layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number 
of Layers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable. 

   (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries. 

  r) Reporting on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is not applicable to the Company.

  q) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has 
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,   
1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

  h) The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending 
against the Company for holding any benami property.

  i) The Company does not have any borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of 
current assets

  k) The Company has not undertaken any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

  l) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the 
statutory period. 

  n) Reporting under Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements is not applicable to the Company. 

  s) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

  o) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or Company(ies), 
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

  g) The Company does not hold any Intangibles assets under development. Accordingly, reporting on 
Intangibles assets under development ageing and completion schedule is not applicable 

  j) The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by and bank or financials institution or lender during the year. 

  p) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or Company(ies), including foreign entities 
(funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

   (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries. 

**********
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NOTE 2A & 2B :  PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Sr.
No.

PARTICULARS

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

As at
April 01, 

2021 

 Additions   Deductions / 
 Adjustments 

 As at
March 31, 

2022

As at
April 01, 

2021 

 For
 the year

 Deductions / 
 Adjustments 

 Total Upto 
March 31, 

2022

 As at 
31-Mar-22

 As at 
31-Mar-21

NOTE 2C:  CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS 

Previous Year   433.99   7.08   (4.52)  436.56   227.58   16.46   (4.33)  239.70   196.85   206.41 

 2   BUILDING & OWNERSHIP FLATS   326.17   0.35   -     326.52   172.99   8.84   -     181.83   144.69   153.18 

  TANGIBLE ASSETS : ( NOTE 2A)           

 3   PLANT & MACHINERY   57.39   1.65   -     59.04   34.84   3.20   -     38.05   20.99   22.54 

 5   OFFICE EQUIP, ELECTL 

 INSTALLATIONS ETC.   33.70   0.26   -     33.96   25.37   1.09   -     26.46   7.49   8.32 

 8   COMPUTERS   0.95   0.02   -     0.97   0.62   0.07   -     0.70   0.28   0.33 

 6   VEHICLES   12.77   4.65   (0.07)  17.34   2.85   1.99   (0.29)  4.54   12.80   9.92 

 1   LAND (LEASEHOLD)   1.68   -     -     1.68   0.14   0.03   -     0.17   1.51   1.54 

 4   FURNITURE & FIXTURES   3.91   0.15   -     4.06   2.89   0.15   -     3.04   1.02   1.02 

 7   OBJECT D`ART.   0.00   -     -     0.00   -     -     -     -     0.00   0.00 

 TOTAL FOR INTANGIBLE ASSETS    -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   

 TOTAL ASSETS    436.56   7.09   (0.07)  443.57   239.70   15.37   (0.29)  254.78   188.79   196.85 

 TOTAL FOR TANGIBLE ASSETS    436.56   7.09   (0.07)  443.57   239.70   15.37   (0.29)  254.78   188.79   196.85 

 INTANGIBLE ASSETS : ( NOTE 2B)  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   

 Capital Work-in-Progress   8.80    8.80       8.80   -   

Capital Work in Progress ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2022 (As derived manually 
billwise and partywise by the management) 

Capital Work in 
Progress as on 
March 31, 2022

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Projects temporarily suspended     -

Projects in progress 8.80     8.80

Total 8.80  - - - 8.80

Capital Work in Progress ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2021 (As derived manually bill 
wise and partywise by the management) 

Capital Work in 
Progress as on 
March 31, 2022

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Projects in progress -    -

Total 0 0 0 0 0

Projects temporarily suspended     -
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NOTE 4 - NON CURRENT ASSETS - FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

₹ in Millions

Particulars
As at

31st March 2022

Bank deposits with more than 12 months of original maturity  3.26   7.17 

 Total   3.26   7.17 

As at
31st March 2021

NOTE 3 - RIGHT TO USE AN ASSET
₹ in Millions

Particulars Leasehold Land Total

 - Amortisation charge for the year 27.63  27.63 

 - Other Acquisitions 16.23  16.23 

Transition Impact of IND 116 0.00  0.00 

 - Other Acquisitions -53.37  -53.37 

Transition Impact of IND 116 0.00  0.00 

Cost  

Balance as at March 31st, 2022  295.92   295.92 

  

Amortisation and Impairment  

Balance as at April 01st, 2020  333.05  333.05 

Balance as at March 31st, 2021  349.28  349.28 

Balance as at April 01st, 2020  27.69    27.69 

Transition Impact of IND 116  

At March 31, 2022  226.79   226.79 

Balance as at March 31st, 2022  69.13   69.13 

Carrying Value  

Transition Impact of IND 116  

Balance as at March 31st, 2021  55.33   55.33 

 - Amortisation charge for the year 13.80  13.80 

At March 31, 2021  293.96   293.96 

NOTE 5 -  OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS ₹ in Millions

Particulars
As at

31st March 2022

Sub-total (B)  9.63   9.99 

Sub-total (A)  7.74   7.74 

 Advance to employees  

 Less:- Allowance for bad and doubtful assets    

Other loans and Deposits  

Unsecured considered good  

Total (A+B)  17.37   17.74 

 Prepaid Expenses   

 Unsecured (considered doubtful)  

 Deposits with Public Bodies and with Miscellaneous Parties   8.24   7.08 

 Balance with Govt. Authorities  7.74   7.74 

 Security Deposit  1.39   2.91 

 Security deposit 9.63   9.99 

As at
31st March 2021
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NOTE 7 - TRADE RECEIVABLES  
₹ in Millions

Particulars
As at

31st March 2022

Balance as at beginning of the year  88.24   88.24 

 Total   79.67   338.16 

Balance as at the end of the year  79.99   88.24 

Add: Provision made during the year  

Unsecured, considered good  7.68   258.74 

Unsecured, considered doubtful  79.99   88.24 

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss  8.00   8.82 

   87.67   346.98 

The movement in allowance for expected credit loss is as follows:  

Less: Amount collected/reversal of provision  8.25  

As at
31st March 2021

Particulars  Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

 Not 
due 

Less than 
6 months

Total

 Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good        

 Disputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired        

 Undisputed Trade Receivables- considered good    10.43   17.45   13.58   46.21   -     87.67 

 Undisputed Trade Receivables- which have 

significant increase in credit risk        

 Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired        

 Disputed Trade Receivables- which have 

significant increase in credit risk        

 Total Trade Receivables   -     10.43   17.45   13.58   46.21   -     87.67 

 Total   -     10.43   17.45   13.58   46.21   -     87.67 

 Less: Allowance for expected credit loss        

Trade Receivables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2022 
(As derived manually billwise and partywise by the management)

 6 months 
to 1 year 

 1-2 years 2-3 years  More than 
3 years 

₹ in Millions

The movement in allowance for bad and doubtful assets is as follows:

Balance as at beginning of the year

Written off during the year

Balance as at the end of the year

Allowance for bad and doubtful assets during the year

NOTE 6 - INVENTORY  ₹ in Millions

Particulars
As at

31st March 2022

Stock of Stores Inventory  6.35   6.73 

Stock of Raw Material/ Food and Beverages  1.69   2.70 

Total   11.42   11.89 

Stock of Operating Supplies  3.38   2.46 

As at
31st March 2021
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NOTE 8 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  ₹ in Millions

Particulars
As at

31st March 2022

in Current Accounts  31.78   34.08 

Balance with Banks  

Cash in Hand  0.09   0.02 

Bank deposits with original maturity less than 3 months  20.60   2.93 

 Total   52.47   37.03 

As at
31st March 2021

NOTE 9 - BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  ₹ in Millions

Particulars
As at

31st March 2022

Bank deposits with original maturity greater than 3 months 

Margin money deposits  0.44   0.44 

but less than 12 months  79.35   79.85 

Total   79.79   80.29 

As at
31st March 2021

NOTE 10 -  OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS  
₹ in Millions

Particulars
As at

31st March 2022

Advance Recoverable from staff  3.53   4.42 

Unsecured Considered Doubtful  177.24   173.62 

Advances Recoverable from Parties  

Interest accrued but not due   0.78   0.80 

Other receivable  7.04   3.15 

Unsecured Considered Good  13.41   13.41 

   202.01   195.39 

Less : Allowance for Doubtful Advances/ Receivables  173.62   173.62 

Total   28.39   21.77 

As at
31st March 2021

Particulars  Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

 Not 
due 

Less than 
6 months

Total

 Undisputed Trade Receivables- considered good    67.27   66.36   190.56    22.80   346.98 

 Undisputed Trade Receivables- 

    which have significant increase in credit risk        

 Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired        

 Disputed Trade Receivables-  

   which have significant increase in credit risk        

 Disputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired        

 Total   -     67.27   66.36   190.56   -     22.80   346.98 

 Less: Allowance for expected credit loss        

 Total Trade Receivables   -     67.27   66.36   190.56   -     22.80   346.98

 Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good        

Trade Receivables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2021. 
(As derived manually billwise and partywise by the management)

 6 months 
to 1 year 

 1-2 years 2-3 years  More than 
3 years 

₹ in Millions
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NOTE 12 - OTHER CURRENT ASSETS  ₹ in Millions

Particulars
As at

31st March 2022

 Other Advances     1.10   0.11 

 Prepaid Expenses   3.65   2.96 

Total   106.07   94.16 

 Advance Against Interim Relief   65.64   58.85 

 Advances to suppliers   1.20   0.20 

 Advance Against Wage Revision (Union)   34.48   32.05 

As at
31st March 2021

NOTE 13- EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL  ₹ in Millions

Particulars
As at

31st March 2022

Authorised Share Capital   

150,00,000 (P.Y. - 150,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs 100/- each  1,500   1,500 

   1,500.00   1,500.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares  

   1,376.00   1,376.00 

1,37,60,000 (P.Y. - 137,60,000) Equity Shares of Rs 100/- each  1,376   1,376 

As at
31st March 2021

a. Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at 
the end of the year

Particulars
31-Mar-22

Add: Number of shares allotted as fully paid-up-bonus shares during the year  -     -     

Add: Number of shares allotted for cash pursuant to public issue  -     -     -     -   

 Total 24820000 2482 13760000 1376

Add: Number of shares allotted during the year as fully paid-up pursuant to a 

Less: Number of Shares bought back during the year on account of disinvestment -11060000 -1106  -     -   

Number of shares outstanding as at end of the year 13760000 1376 13760000 1376

contract without payment being received in cash 11060000  1,106   -     -   

Number of shares outstanding as at beginning of the year 13760000  1,376  13760000 1,376 

Add: Number of shares allotted to employees pursuant to ESOPs/ESPs  -     -     -     -   

₹ in Millions

31-Mar-21

 No of Shares  ₹ in Millions  ₹ in Millions  No of Shares 

NOTE 11 - CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)  
₹ in Millions

Particulars
As at

31st March 2022

 Balance with Government Authorities   

Advance Payment of Income Tax and TDS  52.40   93.41 

 Total   52.40   93.41

As at
31st March 2021
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13.B.  SHARES HELD BY HOLDING COMPANY AND PRESIDENT OF INDIA      
Out of equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its Holding Company and 
President of India are as below:

₹ in Millions

Particulars 31st March 2022

Air India Limited (Holding Company) and its nominees (upto 11-01-2022)*  -     1,10,60,000.00 

President of India  27,00,000.00   27,00,000.00 

AI Assets Holding Limited (Holding Company) and its nominees 

(wef 11-01-2022)*  1,10,60,000.00   -   

* Refer Note 1  

31st March 2021

Particulars
31-Mar-22

President of India  27,00,000  19.62%  27,00,000  19.62%

Air India Limited (Holding Company) and its nominees  -    0.00%  1,10,60,000  80.38%

TOTAL  1,37,60,000  100.00%  1,37,60,000  100.00%

Air India Asset Holding Limited (Holding Company) and its nominees  1,10,60,000  80.38%  -    0.00%

₹ in Millions

31-Mar-21

Nos.

13.C. DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING MORE THAN 5% SHARES IN THE COMPANY 

% Nos. %

NOTE 14 - BORROWINGS  ₹ in Millions

Particulars
As at

31st March 2022

Amount due to Air India Limited   4,392.89 

Amount due to Air India Asset Holding Limited (Holding Company)  5,029.59  

Total   5,029.59   4,392.89 

As at
31st March 2021

NOTE 15 - LONG TERM LEASE LIABILITIES  ₹ in Millions

Particulars
As at

31st March 2022

 Total   349.55  369.29 

Long Term Lease Liability   349.55  369.29 

As at
31st March 2021

b. Terms and rights attached to equity shares:     

In the event of liquidation, Equity Share holders will be entitled to receive the assets of the company remaining 
after distribution of all preferential amount, in proportion to the number of shares held by them."     

"The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.100 per share. Each holder of equity 
shares is entitled to one vote per share.  
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NOTE 17 - SHORT TERM LEASE LIABILITY  ₹ in Millions

Particulars
As at

31st March 2022

Short Term Lease Liability   14.71   30.50 

Lease Rent Payable   563.80   615.81 

 Total   578.51   646.31 

As at
31st March 2021

NOTE 18 - TRADE PAYABLES  ₹ in Millions

Particulars
As at

31st March 2022

Dues of micro and small enterprises   10.36   12.24 

Other trade payables   24.29   39.43 

 Total   34.64   51.67 

As at
31st March 2021

(ii)  The disclosures relating to Micro and Small Enterprises are as under:  

(I).  The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006” has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of 
information collected by the Management.  

Note:  

Particulars
As at

31st March 2022

(a)  The principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the accounting year  10.36   12.24 

(f)  The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such 

 date when the interest dues as above are actually paid   -     -   

 to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year   -     -   

(b)  The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the accounting year  -     -   

(c)  The amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16, along with the amount of payment made

(e)  The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year  -     -   

(d)  The amount of interest due and payable for the year   -     -   

As at
31st March 2021

NOTE 16 - LONG TERM PROVISIONS  ₹ in Millions

Particulars
As at

31st March 2022

Provision for Leave Encashment   92.28   96.52 

Provision for employee benefits  

 Total   494.08   534.81 

Provision for PRMS   186.64   202.49 

Post Retirement Benefit Scheme Contribution   12.72   11.59 

Provision for Gratuity   202.44   224.20 

As at
31st March 2021
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NOTE 19 - OTHERS CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES  ₹ in Millions

Particulars
As at

31st March 2022

Payable to employees   34.92   43.89 

Other payable   34.52   17.84 

Earnest Money Deposit   4.03   6.32 

Security Deposit from vendors   1.74   2.09 

Retention Money   -     0.20 

 Total   245.31   248.34 

Provision for Wage Revision Arrears   146.36   146.36 

Shop & Other Deposits   23.73   31.65 

As at
31st March 2021

Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2021 (As derived manually billwise and 
partywise by the management)

Particulars  Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

 Not due 

(ii) Others   27.09   3.28   5.55   3.50 

(iv) Disputed dues- Others     

(i) MSME   12.24    

(iii) Disputed dues- MSME     

Total trade payables  -     39.32   3.28   5.55   3.50 

Less than 
1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 

3 years

NOTE 20 - CURRENT - OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES  
₹ in Millions

Particulars
As at

31st March 2022

Capital Creditors   -     -   

Outstanding Liabilities   3.73   0.01 

Provision towards Interim Relief   66.81   57.58 

Other Advances   2.33   1.93 

Others   46.41   44.73 

Statutory liabilities   35.71   39.54 

 Total   154.99   143.79 

As at
31st March 2021

Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2022 ( As derived manually billwise and 
partywise by the management )

Particulars  Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

 Not due 

(iv) Disputed dues- Others     

(ii) Others   21.66   2.03   0.08   0.66 

(iii) Disputed dues- MSME     

(i) MSME   10.36    

Total trade payables  -     32.01   2.03   0.08   0.66 

Less than 
1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 

3 years
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NOTE 22. REVENUE FROM OPERATION  
₹ in Millions

Particulars
For the year ended 

31-03-2022

Other Services    45.02   35.31 

License fees for Shops and Offices    4.05   4.66 

 TOTAL  262.77   225.29 

Revenue from Hotels and Flight Kitchen  

Food, Cigars and Cigarettes   93.11   88.12 

Rooms - Guest Accommodation   120.58   97.19 

For the year ended 
31-03-2021

NOTE 23 . OTHER INCOME
₹ in Millions

Particulars
For the year ended 

31-03-2022

Interest Income   12.24   9.43 

Profit on sale of asset   0.01   1.00 

Sundry balances written back (Net)   0.70   0.18 

Excess provision written back   74.73   0.07 

Others   1.91   13.63 

 TOTAL  89.59   24.32 

For the year ended 
31-03-2021

NOTE 21 - SHORT TERM PROVISIONS  
₹ in Millions

Particulars
As at

31st March 2022

    Provision for PRMS   7.75   7.23 

 Total   107.16   101.43 

    Gratuity - Short Term   75.13   70.37 

    Ex Gratia Payable  

Provision for employee benefits  

    Leave - Short Term   24.29   23.83 

As at
31st March 2021
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NOTE 25 :. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  ₹ in Millions

Particulars
For the year ended 

31-03-2022

Leave Encashment   17.25   12.74 

Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Fund   36.01   36.35 

Staff Welfare Expenses   10.45   7.60 

Salaries, Wages , Bonus   341.68   340.72 

Gratuity   26.19   30.24 

Post Retirement Medical Benefit   16.19   15.40 

 TOTAL  447.76   443.06 

For the year ended 
31-03-2021

NOTE 26 :. FINANCE COST  
₹ in Millions

Particulars
For the year ended 

31-03-2022

Interest on borrowings from Holding Company   482.75   351.90 

 TOTAL  501.30   381.81 

Interest on Statutory Dues   0.06   0.27 

Interest on Lease Liability   17.84   29.46 

Interest - Others   0.65   0.18 

For the year ended 
31-03-2021

NOTE 24 :. COST OF RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED  
₹ in Millions

Particulars
For the year ended 

31-03-2022

Food Consumed (Including Cigars and Cigarettes)  

Less: Closing stock   (1.69)  (2.70)

Add: Purchases   56.56   40.34 

Add: Purchases   -     0.06 

Opening stock   2.70   2.53 

   57.57   40.18 

Beverages Consumed  

Opening Stock   -     -   

   -     0.06 

Consumption of Stores and Supplies  

Add: Purchases   2.98   2.02 

Less: Closing Stock   (6.35)  (6.73)

   3.35   2.91 

Less: Closing stock   -     -   

Cost of Raw material consumed   60.92   43.15 

Opening Stock   6.73   7.62 

For the year ended 
31-03-2021
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₹ in Millions

Note : Payment to Auditor 
For the year ended 

31-03-2022

For Audit Fees   0.27   0.23 

For Reimbursement of expenses    0.05   0.00 

   0.31   0.23 

For the year ended 
31-03-2021

NOTE 28 :. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  ₹ in Millions

Particulars
For the year ended 

31-03-2022

Gratuity  (16.65)  2.53 

PRMS  22.26   5.00 

  5.61   7.53 

For the year ended 
31-03-2021

NOTE 27 :. OTHER EXPENSES  ₹ in Millions

Particulars
For the year ended 

31-03-2022

Power & Fuel   83.59   66.89 

Lease Rent    15.30   15.32 

Conveyance   0.31   0.21 

Guest Transportation   0.23   0.29 

Travelling & Conveyance:  

Building   3.64   2.78 

Travelling   0.36   0.31 

Hire charges   -     0.09 

Communication costs   0.93   0.83 

Payment to Auditor (Refer note below)   0.31   0.23 

Security Charges   13.58   13.68 

Others   7.26   7.07 

Miscellaneous Expenses   4.68   4.78 

Repairs & Maintenance:  

Plant and Machinery   4.94   1.97 

Soft Furnishing   1.71   2.38 

Printing and Stationery   1.33   0.79 

Insurance   2.91   3.72 

Legal and Professional Charges   9.42   5.56 

Provision for Doubtful Advances   -     173.62 

 TOTAL  161.32   311.22 

Advertisement and Publicity   0.56   0.26 

Commission   0.08   0.02 

Vehicle Expenses   1.95   0.88 

Rates and Taxes   8.24   9.53 

For the year ended 
31-03-2021
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29  Employee Benefits       

 A.    Defined Contribution Scheme:        

  Contributions to Defined Contribution Scheme of Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance are charged to 
the Statement of Profit & Loss,  Rs 36.01 million  (Previous Year Rs.36.35 million)       

 D.   Privilege for Sick Leave Encashment: Privilege for Sick Leave Encashment is payable to all eligible employees 
at the time of retirement/termination  upto a maximum of 120 days. The provision of which has not been created, 
as the company is in practice of final settlement when the actual payment is computed/determined        

        

        

        

        

        
 E.   Post Retirement Medical Scheme: Post Retirement Medical Scheme is payable to all permanent employees 

who opt for the scheme at the time of retirement  . The reimbursement of medical expenses for self and spouse 
for their entire lifetime is upto a maximum of Rs 10 lakhs       

 B.    Defined Benefit Plan:        

  Gratuity: Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Company on superannuation, death, or permanent 
disablement, in terms of the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act       

 C.   Privilege Leave Encashment: Privilege Leave Encashment is payable to all eligible employees at the time of 
retirement/termination upto a maximum of 300 days.       

 F.    Disclosure as per Ind AS – 19

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Rupees in Millions except otherwise stated)

Sr.
No.

Particulars
Gratuity

As at 31.03.22 As at 31.03.21

 Rate of Employee Turnover 4.00% 2.00%

  Ultimate Ultimate

 Reporting Standard Indian  Indian

 Funding Status Unfunded Unfunded

 Rate of Salary Increase 5.00% 5.00%

  Assured Lives  Assured Lives 

 Starting Period 01-Apr-21 01-Apr-20

   (2006-08)  (2006-08) 

 Reporting Currency INR INR

  (Ind AS 19) (Ind AS 19)

 Period of Reporting 12 Months 12 Months

 Expected Return on Plan Assets N.A. N.A.

b) Assumptions (Previous Period)      

 Country India  India 

 Date of Reporting 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

  Standard 19  Standard 19 

  

  Accounting  Accounting 

a) Type of Benefit Gratuity Gratuity

 Ref ID 641332 504314

 Rate of Discounting 6.06% 6.43%

 Mortality Rate During Employment "Indian  "Indian 

  Mortality Mortality
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 Interest Cost  17.85   20.72 

 Past Service Cost -     -   

c) Assumptions (Current Period)      

 Rate of Salary Increase 5.00% 5.00%

 Mortality Rate During Employment "Indian  "Indian 

  Assured Lives  Assured Lives 

  Mortality Mortality

  2012-14  2006-08

  (Urban)" Ultimate”

d) Table Showing Change in the Present Value of Projected 

 Expected Return on Plan Assets N.A. N.A.

 Rate of Employee Turnover 4.00% 4.00%

 Benefit Obligation      

 Rate of Discounting 6.41% 6.06%

       

 Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the Period  294.57   322.30 

 Current Service Cost 8.34   9.51 

 Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions -     -   

 (Liabilities Extinguished on Settlement) -     -   

 (Liability Transferred Out/ Divestments) -     -   

 (Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) (59.85)  (55.44)

 The Effect Of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates -     -   

 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in 

 (Benefit Paid From the Fund) -     -   

 (Gains)/ Losses on Curtailment -     -   

 (Assets Distributed on Settlements) -     -   

 Assets Transferred In/Acquisitions -     -   

e) Table Showing Change in the Fair Value of Plan Assets      

 (Assets Transferred Out/ Divestments) -     -   

 Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period  -     -   

 Interest Income -     -   

 Demographic Assumptions (0.03)  1.17 

 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in 

 (Expenses and Tax for managing the Benefit Obligations- paid from the fund) -     -   

       

 Effects of Asset Ceiling -     -   

 Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period -     -   

 Expected Contributions by the Employees -     -   

 (Benefit Paid from the Fund) -     -   

 The Effect of Changes In Foreign Exchange Rates -     -   

 Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income -     -   

 Financial Assumptions (29.10)  3.45 

 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience 19.68   (7.15)

 Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the Period 277.56   294.57 

 Contributions by the Employer -     -   

  



83

 Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) (277.56)  (294.57)

  

 (Interest Income) 

 Net Interest Cost for Current Period 17.85   20.72 

 Net Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates -     -   

       

 (Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period) -     -   

 Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Period -     -   

       

 Net Interest Cost 17.85   20.72 

 Change in Asset Ceiling -     -   

 Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income -     -   

 Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet (277.56)  (294.57)

 Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the Period  294.57   322.30 

 Profit or Loss for Current Period      

g) Net Interest Cost for Current Period      

f) Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet      

 (Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the Period) (277.56)  (294.57)

 Net Liability/(Asset) at the Beginning 294.57   322.30 

 Interest Cost 17.85   20.72 

 Current Service Cost 8.34   9.51 

 Past Service Cost -     -   

 (Expected Contributions by the Employees) -     -   

h) Expenses Recognized in the Statement of 

 (Gains)/Losses on Curtailments And Settlements -     -   

 Expenses Recognized 26.19   30.24 

I) Expenses Recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income 

 (OCI) for Current Period      

 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period 16.65   (2.53)

 Net (Income)/Expense For the Period Recognized in OCI 16.65   (2.53)

j) Balance Sheet Reconciliation      

  

 Opening Net Liability  294.57   322.30 

 Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss 26.19   30.24 

 Expenses Recognized in OCI 16.65   (2.53)

 Net Liability/(Asset) Transfer In -     -   

 (Employer's Contribution) -     -   

 Debt Instruments -     -   

  

 Net Liability/(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 277.56   294.57 

 (Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) (59.85)  (55.44)

 Corporate Bonds -     -   

 Net (Liability)/Asset Transfer Out -     -   

k) Category of Assets      

 Government of India Assets -     -   

 State Government Securities  -     -   

 Special Deposits Scheme -     -   
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 Current Service Cost 7.57   8.34 

 (Expected Contributions by the Employees) -     -   

       

 Cash and Cash Equivalents -     -   

 (Interest Income) -     -   

 Per Month Salary For Active Members 17.97   18.91 

 No of Active Members 460   533 

 Average Expected Future Service 5.00   5.00 

  

 Asset Backed Securities -     -   

 Weighted Average Duration of the Projected Benefit Obligation 4.00   4.00 

 Projected Benefit Obligation 277.56   294.57 

  

 Net Liability/(Asset) at the End of the Period 277.56   294.57 

m) Net Interest Cost for Next Year      

 Interest Cost 17.79   17.85 

 Net Interest Cost for Next Year 17.79   17.85 

 Structured Debt -     -   

 Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the Period 277.56   294.57 

l) Other Details      

 Insurance Fund -     -   

 Other -     -   

 Total -     -   

       

 (Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period) -     -   

 Expected Contribution in the next year -     -   

n) Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Next Year      

 Net Interest Cost 17.79   17.85 

 Expenses Recognized 25.36   26.19 

o) Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments:       

 2nd Following Year 28.83   35.97 

 5th Following Year 22.72   35.45 

 Sum of Years 6 To 10 100.82   90.67 

  

p) Sensitivity Analysis      

 Sum of Years 11 and above 32.67   44.87 

 Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 277.56   294.57 

 Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (8.16)  (9.13)

 Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 8.76   9.82 

 4th Following Year 37.75   44.54 

 3rd Following Year 49.10   45.71 

 Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 8.80   9.82 

 Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (8.35)  (9.30)

 Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (0.50)  (0.43)

 1st Following Year 75.13   70.37 

 Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 0.48   0.41 

 Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting 
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The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions 
occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.       

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been 
calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied 
in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.       

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.       

II Post Retirement Medical Benefits

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit 
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the 
assumptions may be correlated.       

Sr.
No.

Particulars
Post Retirement Medical Benefits 

As at 31.03.22 As at 31.03.21

   (2006-08)  (2006-08) 

  Ultimate" Ultimate”

 Rate of Discounting 7.40% 6.91%

 Period of Reporting 12 Months 12 Months

 Rate of Employee Turnover 2.00% 2.00%

 Funding Status Unfunded Unfunded

 Mortality Rate During Employment "Indian  "Indian

 Reporting Standard Indian  Indian 

 Expected Return on Plan Assets N.A. N.A.

  Accounting  Accounting 

  Standard 19  Standard 19 

 Rate of Discounting 6.83% 6.81%

 Reporting Currency INR INR

 Rate of Employee Turnover 2.00% 4.00%

 Expected Return on Plan Assets N.A. N.A.

  (Ind AS 19) (Ind AS 19)

 Reference ID 0 546747

 Mortality Rate After Employment "Indian  "Indian 

 Country India  India 

b) Assumptions (Previous Period)      

a) Type of Benefit Medical Medical

       

 Medical cost inflation 4.00% 4.00%

  Assured Lives Assured Lives

  Mortality Mortality

 Date of Reporting 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

 Starting Period 01-Apr-21 01-Apr-20

  (2006-08)  (2006-08) 

  Ultimate" Ultimate”

  Assured Lives  Assured Lives 

  Mortality Mortality

c) Assumptions (Current Period)      

 Medical cost inflation 4.00% 4.00%
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 Mortality Rate During Employment "Indian  "Indian

  Assured Lives  Assured Lives 

   (2012-14)  (2006-08) 

  Urban"  Ultimate”

 Mortality Rate After Employment "Indian  "Indian

  Mortality AMT

  (2006-08)  (2012-2015)

  Ultimate"  

 Projected Benefit Obligation      

 Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the Period 221.31   212.79 

 Current Service Cost 2.02   2.00 

 Past Service Cost -     -   

 (Liability Transferred Out/ Divestments) -     -   

d) Table Showing Change in the Present Value of 

 (Gains)/ Losses on Curtailment -     -   

  Mortality Mortality

  Assured Lives Individual 

 (Liabilities Extinguished on Settlement) -     -   

 (Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) (9.26)  (3.03)

 Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions -     -   

 Interest Cost 15.29   14.49 

 (Benefit Paid From the Fund) -     -   

 Contributions by the Employer -     -   

 Expected Contributions by the Employees -     -   

 The Effect of Changes In Foreign Exchange Rates -     -   

 Effects of Asset Ceiling -     -   

e) Table Showing Change in the Fair Value of Plan Assets      

  

 Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period -     -   

f) Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet      

 (Benefit Paid from the Fund) -     -   

 in Financial Assumptions (20.13)  (2.14)

 Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income -     -   

 (Assets Distributed on Settlements) -     -   

 in Demographic Assumptions -     21.61 

 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change 

 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change 

 Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period -     -   

 Interest Income -     -   

 The Effect Of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates -     -   

 Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the Period 207.11   221.31 

 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience (2.13)  (24.42)

 (Assets Transferred Out/ Divestments) -     -   

 (Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the Period) 207.11   221.31 

  

 Assets Transferred In/Acquisitions -     -   
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 (Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period) -     -   

 Net Interest Cost 15.29   14.49 

  

 (Gains)/Losses on Curtailments And Settlements -     -   

  

g) Net Interest Cost for Current Period      

 Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Period -     -   

 Net Interest Cost for Current Period 15.29   14.49 

 Net Liability/(Asset) at the Beginning 221.31   212.79 

 Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the Period 221.31   212.79 

 Interest Cost 15.29   14.49 

 (Interest Income) -     -   

  

h) Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss 

 Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) 207.11   221.31 

 Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet 207.11   221.31 

 for Current Period      

 Current Service Cost 2.02   2.00 

 Past Service Cost -     -   

 (Expected Contributions by the Employees) -     -   

 Net Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates -     -   

 Expenses Recognized 17.32   16.49 

I) Expenses Recognized in the Other Comprehensive 

 Income (OCI) for Current Period      

 Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income -     -   

 Change in Asset Ceiling -     -   

  

j) Balance Sheet Reconciliation 

 Opening Net Liability 221.31   212.79 

 Expenses Recognized in OCI (22.26)  (4.95)

 Net (Liability)/Asset Transfer Out -     -   

 Net Liability/(Asset) Transfer In -     -   

 (Employer's Contribution) -     -   

 Net Liability/(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 207.11   221.31 

 Net (Income)/Expense For the Period Recognized in OCI (22.26)  (4.95)

  

k) Category of Assets      

 (Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) (9.26)  (3.03)

 Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss 17.32   16.49 

 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period (22.26)  (4.95)

 Government of India Assets -     -   

 Insurance fund -     -   

 State Government Securities -     -   

 Special Deposits Scheme -     -   

 Corporate Bonds -     -   

 Cash And Cash Equivalents -     -   

 Debt Instruments -     -   
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 (Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period) -     -   

 Average Future Term 17.97   18.91 

o) Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments:       

 3rd Following Year 10.15   8.85 

 Sum of Years 6 To 10 78.94   57.27 

 2nd Following Year 8.88   7.59 

  

 Total -     -   

 Asset-Backed Securities -     -   

 Projected Benefit Obligation (PBO) Due but not paid 30   30 

 No of Active Members 460   533 

 Expected Contribution in the  Next Year  207.11   221.31 

  

m) Net Interest Cost for Next Year      

 Net Liability/(Asset) at the End of the Period 207.11   221.31 

 (Interest Income) 

 Structured Debt -     -   

 Other -     -   

  

       

n) Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Next Year      

 Net Interest Cost 15.33   15.29 

 Projected Benefit Obligation (PBO) Total 30   30 

 Expenses Recognized 30.79   35.54 

 Current Service Cost 15.46   20.25 

 Interest Cost 15.33   15.29 

 1st Following Year\ 7.75   6.18 

 4th Following Year 11.31   10.22 

l) Other Details      

 Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the Period 207.11   221.31 

 Net Interest Cost for Next Year 15.33   15.29 

 (Expected Contributions by the Employees) -     -   

 Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting      

 5th Following Year 12.30   11.47 

  Sum of Years 11 and above  -     -   

  Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting  25.60   29.46 

  Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting   (20.54)  (23.98)

  Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase  -     -   

  Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover  -     -   

  Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover  -     -

  Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase  -     -   

  Defined Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions  207.11   221.31 

q) Sensitivity Analysis 
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30 Deferred Tax Assets        

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been 
calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied 
in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet       

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions 
occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.       

        
31 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:       

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.       

A Contingent Liabilities       

 In compliance with Ind AS 37 on “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, the required information 
is as under:       

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit 
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the 
assumptions may be correlated.       

 The Company has not recognized deferred tax assets arising on account of carried forward tax losses and 
unabsorbed depreciation to the extent of the deferred tax liability arising since the availability of sufficient future 
taxable income against which the said benefits can be set off is not possible to be ascertained with virtual certainty.       

Description Opening 
Balance 
as on 1st 
April 2021

Sr.
No.

Additions 
during the 

year 
2021-22

Utilisation 
during the 

year 
2021-22

Reversals 
during the 

year 
2021-22

 Closing 
Balance as 

on 31st 
March 2022 

i) Luxury Tax 22.89   -     -      22.89 

ii) Service Tax 58.00   -     -      58.00 

iii) Counter claim of Sahara Hospitality Ltd 23.57   -     -     -     23.57 

iv) Arbitration Award for B D & P Hotels 

v) Arbitration proceedings against 

 N S Associates 6.96   -     -     -     6.96 

vi) Premium payable on fore shore land 

 of erstwhile Centaur Hotel Juhu Beach 

 claimed by Shere kashmir Convention 

 to Government of Maharashtra  44.80   -     -     -     44.80 

vii) Landscaping of Centaur Hotel Srinagar 

 challenged in Court 5.40   -     -     -     5.40 

 Company and preferred an appeal  1.06   -     -     -     1.06 

ix) Interest on dues payable to AAI/DIAL/MIAL 770.82   35.74   -     (112.91)  693.65 

 Centre, J&K Govt. disputed by HCI 50.62      50.62 

viii) Awards that have gone against the 

x) Claims of employees -        -   

 Total 984.12   35.74   -     (112.91)  906.95 

 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts       

 i)  Claims of Luxury Tax authorities, for financial year 2000-01 and 2002-03 for  which the Company has preferred 
an appeal with Additional Commissioner of Sales Tax  against which Company has paid Rs.7.07 million 
(previous year Rs. 7.07 million) under protest.         
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 ii)      Claims of Service Tax amounting to Rs. 58 million for which the Company has preferred  appeals       
        

        
 iii)    Counter Claim of Rs. 23.57 million by M/s Sahara Hospitality Ltd. (formerly known as M/s Batra Hospitality Pvt. 

Ltd.), the buyer of Centaur Hotel Mumbai Airport, towards Net Current Assets which was disputed by the 
Company, as the Net Current Assets and other obligations of the buyer were to be settled in terms of the 
Agreement to Sell dated 18.4.2002.   In the prior years, the Hon'ble Arbitral Tribunal published their award 
under which the buyer had to pay Rs 18.8 million and interest thereon along with legal costs of Rs 0.40 million.  
The buyers preferred an appeal in the Hon'ble High Court of Bombay against the award.The Hon'ble High Court 
has set aside the Arbitration Award. This has been challenged by the Company before the Divisional Bench of 
the Hon'ble High Court of Bombay which has been admitted and is pending for hearing .       

        
 iv)  The Management Contract Agreement executed on 15 September 2010  with M/s B.D.&P Hotels (India) Pvt 

Limited  for running the Centaur Hotel Lake View, Srinagar (CLVH)  under Management Contract.  However, 
before handing over the unit, a communication was received from the Ministry forwarding the decision taken in 
the meeting of the Committee of Secretaries, GoI stating that J&K Govt had indicated that since the land was 
leased to the Company by J&K Government, the Management Contract was not feasible and the decision of 
offering the unit under Management Contract may be reviewed.  Accordingly, with the approval of the Board the 
said Management Contract was terminated on 26 September 2011 and the interest   free Security Deposit of 
Rs.100 million  and  proportionate Minimum Guaranteed Amount of Rs 10.8 million   deposited by the party was 
returned to the Bidder, M/s BD & P Hotel (India) Pvt. Ltd.         

  Subsequently, the Company has challenged the said order before the Division Bench of  Hon'ble High Court of 
Bombay  in March 2019 and is still pending for hearing.  The options available to the Company are being 
explored with the guidance of the Senior Counsel in the matter.       

        
 v)  The Company had entered into an Agreement with M/s. N S Associates for renovation of guest rooms together 

with connected shafts and corridors at Centaur Hotel Delhi Airport(CHDA). Certain disputes and differences 
arose with the said Party and the final bill was not settled.  Accordingly, the party invoked arbitration clause 
claiming an amount of Rs 78.78 million and interest thereon @ 15%. The Arbitration Award was published by the 
Learned Arbitral Tribunal  on 19.10.2019  by holding that the Company has to pay only Rs. 8.84 million along 
with litigation costs of Rs.0.5 million to the party. The Company  filed a petition under section 34 of the Arbitration 
and Conciliation Act, 1996 for partly setting aside the impugned award, which has been admitted. Hearing in the 
matter is pending . Against the amount payable as per the award totalling to Rs 9.343 million, an amount of Rs 
2.388 million (including Rs 0.03 million as Earnest Money Deposit) is reflected as payable in the books of 
accounts. Hence the balance amount of Rs 6.96 million is reflected under Contingent Liability.       

        

        

 viii) Awards that have gone against the Company for which appeals are preferred       
        

  M/s B.D.&P Hotels (India) Pvt Limited had  filed a writ in the High Court of Bombay for invoking arbitration. The 
Hon'ble High Court granted the appeal of the party and sole arbitrator was appointed. The party challenged the 
termination of the Agreement and claimed Rs 3410 million plus 18% interest from the Company, The Arbitration 
Award was received on 14th August 2015 directing HCI to hand over the property to the party along with legal 
cost of Rs 5.4 million, which was challenged  by the Company in the Hon'ble High Court of Bombay . Vide order 
dated 8 January 2019 passed by the single judge the arbitration petition has been dismissed.       

 vii)   Pertains to the Company's share of the cost of landscaping of Centaur Hotel Srinagar claimed by Shere 
Kashmir Convention Centre/ J&K Govt., disputed by the Company       

        

 ix) Lease rentals and Turnover levy amounting to Rs 563.80 million are payable  to Airports Authority of India 
(AAI)/DIAL/MIAL and the same  are provided in the books of accounts as per the working of the Company, 
subject to confirmation . In view of disputes with AAI/DIAL/MIAL, interest on account of outstanding dues 
payable to AAI/DIAL/MIAL amounting to Rs  693.65 million (previous year 770.82 million) is reflected as 
Contingent Liability.

 vi)  Subsequent to the sale of Centaur Hotel Juhu Beach in 2002, Govt. of Maharashtra claimed an amount of Rs 
44.8 million from M/s V. Hotels Limited and from the Company for premium payable on the transfer of 1810 
sq.mtr of land attached to the hotel property which was on lease from the State Govt. and is to be kept open to 
sky - to be used only as garden.  The same was disputed by the Company before the Revenue Minister, 
Government of Maharashtra quoting the Agreement to Sell . The Order of the State Government dated 1.6.2014 
has directed M/s V. Hotels to make payment of the said premium. M/s V. Hotels Limited has challenged the 
order in the Bombay High Court, wherein the Company has been made a party.       
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  During the Year the company has made addition of Rs.35.74 million against interest on account of outstanding 
dues payable to AAI/DIAL/MIAL and reversal of Rs. 112.91 million, due to wrong computation of Interest on 
stautory portions( Indirect Tax) included while deriving the actual liability during the previous years."       

        
 x)   Claims made by employees - various claims on account of reinstatement, promotions, permanency, wage 

revision, etc by existing and retired employees of the Company are under litigation and the claims will depend 
on the outcome of the cases. Hence amount is indeterminate       

 b) Amount receivable from J & K government on account of  joint construction of the hotel and SKICC in 1982- Rs 
29.78 million and interest subsidy Rs 12.00  million, totalling to Rs 41.78 million (Note 10)       

 c) Amount payable to J & K government on account of joint construction of the hotel and SKICC in 1982 is Rs. 
39.68 million  (Note No. 20)       

 J&K Govt. vide its Order dated 03.05.2021 constituted a committee to negotiate with HCI to finalize all matters 
relating to the disposal of the Hotel. Despite a reminder sent on September 6, 2021 by the then Secretary, MoCA to 
initiate discussions with the HCI management, J&K Govt. instead sent a Termination Notice dt 27.12.2021 alleging 
that HCI had sublet the premises & given this violation, the lease stands determined and asked for the Hotel to be 
handed over to the J&K Govt. within 15 days. HCI submitted a detailed representation dt 24.01.2022 & requested 
for a meeting to resolve this. J&K Govt. appointed an Estate Officer who issued a notice dated 05.04.2022 under 
J&K Public Premises Act asking HCI to Show Cause as to why HCI should not be evicted. This was responded 
within the deadline. A Caveat was also filed by them on 09.04.2022. Estate Officer then sent an Eviction Notice on 
25.04.2022 giving HCI 45 days to vacate. HCI filed an Appeal with the DM on 04.05.2022. Post receiving an 
approval from MoCA on 06.05.2022, HCI filed a Writ against the Termination Notice in the J&K HC which was 
dismissed dt. 02.06.2022. HCI filed a SLP in SC & despite the orders of the SC on 08.06.2022, J&K Govt sent forces 
on 14.06.2022 to seal the property & forcefully took possession of the hotel. The matter was again contested in J&K 
HC. HCI, J&K Govt., Workers Union & BD&P Hotels have completed the Arguments & the judgement is reserved.        

 a) Amount receivable from J & K government in respect of cost sharing arrangements with SKICC is Rs .135.42 
million - (previous year Rs 127.04 million )- (Note 10)       

        

34 Wage Revision:       

        
33 Subsequent events post Balance Sheet date:       

32 The matters relating to cost of construction of Centaur Lake View Hotel Srinagar and the cost sharing arrangement 
between the hotel and Sher e Kashmir Convention Centre (SKICC) between the Company and Government of 
Jammu & Kashmir (J&K) had been agreed by both the parties in a joint meeting held on 15 October 2004 and all the 
matters of divergent views were settled. Consequent upon the agreement, the following amounts were receivable / 
payable:       

 The Hon'ble Arbitral Tribunal published their award under which M/s Sahara Hospitality Ltd. (formerly known as M/s 
Batra Hospitality Pvt. Ltd.), the buyer of erstwhile Centaur Hotel Mumbai Airport  had to pay an amount of Rs 18.8 
million and interest thereon along with legal costs of Rs 0.40 million to the Company .  However, the buyers 
preferred an appeal in the Hon'ble High Court of Bombay against the award.The Hon'ble High Court set aside the 
Arbitration Award, which has been challenged by the Company before the Divisional Bench of the Hon'ble High 
Court of Bombay which has been admitted and is pending for hearing . (refer 30 A iii) above)       

        

 These balances are subject to reconciliation and confirmation.  Adjustment, if any will be accounted in the year in 
which finality is reached.        

  After protracted negotiations between Wage Negotiation Committee of the Management and Co-Ordination 
Committee of HCI Unions and after receipt of final approval from the Ministry of Civil Aviation, the Memorandum 

 

        

 However, as a matter of abundant caution, the Company has not made any Provision for Doubtful Advances on the 
above matter during the current financial year       

B Contingent Assets       

 a) The earlier wage agreements with workmen had expired on 31.12.2006. The Unions submitted their Charters of 
Demands        
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 Capital Commitments        

36 Commitments:       

  The Management had announced an interim relief of Rs 5,000/- per month per employee for officers  effective 
1.1.2017 which continues to be paid and has been expensed out in the Statement of  Profit and Loss  Account. 
As and when wage revision is approved, this amount would be adjusted against arrears payable , if any, for 
which employeewise details  have been maintained separately in the books of accounts  as Advance against 
Interim relief Rs.65.64 million and Provision against Interim Relief amounting to Rs 66.81  million (Refer note 
no.12 and 20).       

of Understanding dated 08.08.2019 was entered into between the unions and the Company for implementing 
wage revision for the Unionised category of employees for a period of 10 years effective 18.08.2008. The wage 
revision was implemented in the financial year 2019-20.        

  In view of the above, total estimated provision for arrears of wage revision for the unionised category of 
employees as on 31.3.2022 is Rs 146.36 million (Refer note no. 19) against which an advance of Rs 34.48 
million is shown in the books of accounts (Refer note no.12). The calculations for arrears payable to employees 
effective 08.08.2008 are in progress. Hence any differential provision would be made in the year it is finalised.       

        
35 Renovation of Hotels :        

 b) The wage revision relating to the Officers Cadre which was due on 01.01.2007 for a period of 10 years  is  
pending. In view of the financial position of the Company the wage revision for the officers has been deferred.       

 The Company received a sum of Rs 50 Mns during 2015-16 against issue of equity shares from the Government of 
India for renovation of hotels. In April 2017, the Company appointed a Consultant to undertake the upgradation and 
refurbishing of 75 guest rooms and other allied works for Centaur Srinagar. The same is not actively pursued in view 
of the situation in the Valley and uncertainty regarding handing over of the Srinagar hotel property to the J&K 
Government. However, some essential capital expenditure required for the smooth operations of Centaur Srinagar 
will be incurred in the next financial year.       

 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account are given hereunder:

Particulars
As at 

31st March 2022

Hilift -     -   

Total  -     -   

As at 
31st March 2021

 i) The Company has reconciled the balances in respect of Trade Receivables, Trade Payables, in respect of the 
Holding Company and its subsidiaries as on 31st March 2022       

37 Confirmations of Balances       

 ii)  The Company is also in the process of obtaining confirmation of balances in respect of Trade payables, other 
Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances, Deposits and Other Liabilities as on 31st March, 2022. Accordingly, 
such accounts reflect the balances as per their respective ledger accounts and are subject to adjustments, if 
any on reconciliation of accounts. The difference, if any, will be adjusted in the accounts as and when 
reconciliation is completed.       

38 LEASES- IND AS 116       

 The Company has taken land on lease which are generally long term in nature with varying terms, escalation 
clauses and renewal rights expiring from thirty to ninety nine years. On renewal, the terms of the leases are 
renegotiable.       
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 b)  Exposure to Future Cash Flows:       

 The Company has not made lease payments & Turnover Leavy to AAI/DIAL/MIAL   (Refer Note no.17 ) even the 
interest accrued on the principal amount has been considered as contingent (Refer Note no. 30 Aix), hence 
undiscounted cash flow of lease liabilities & Turnover Leavy cannot be ascertained. There is no as such payment 
profile and therefore maturity analysis cannot be prepared.       

39 Earnings Per Share:  

 a)    Total lease liabilities are analysed as under:       

Particulars 31st March 2022

Less: Extra-Ordinary Items -     -   

Profit/(Loss) After Tax & Before Extra-Ordinary Items (842.51)  (966.19)

Profit/(Loss) After Tax & Extra-Ordinary Items (842.51)  (966.19)

b)  Diluted (61.23)  (70.22)

EPS  

a)   Basic (61.23)  (70.22)

Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares 13.76   13.76 

31st March 2021

Particulars 31st March 2022

Non-current 349.55   369.29 

Total                                                                                                                             364.26   399.79 

Current                                                                                                                          14.71  30.50 

31st March 2021

40 Remuneration to Auditors:       

 The details of the audit fees and expenses of the Auditors:-       

Particulars 2021-2022

Audit fees- For the year 0.27  0.23 

Total 0.31   0.23 

Out of Pocket Expenses of previous auditors 0.05   0.00 

2020-2021

i) Holding Company       
 Air India Limited upto 11.01.2022       

 Disclosure of the names and designations of the Related Parties as required by Indian Accounting Standard (IND 
AS-24) during the year 2020-21 and 2021-22 are given below:       

        

 

 AI Assets Holding Ltd w.e.f. 11.01.2022       

41 Segment information is provided in Annexure "I" as per Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments" under Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounting) Rules, 2014.        

ii) Group/Associates Companies       
 a)   AI Airport Services Limited (AIASL) (formerly AIATSL)        

 Related Party Relationships       

 b)  AI Engineering Services Limited (AIESL)        
 c)  Alliance Air Aviation  Limited (AAAL)(formerly known as Airlines Allied Services Ltd. (AASL))        

        

42 Related Party Transactions:      
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ii) Person having significant influence       
 President of India (through his representative)       

  T.C.Dalal -  Chief  Financial Officer        

        

 ii)  Key Managerial Remuneration    

 
 Transactions with Key Managerial Personnel:       

 A Key Management Personnel & Relatives :        
  Key Managerial Personnel & Relatives       

  Deepak Khullar - Chief Executive Officer        

  Shyamala P. Kunder - Company Secretary (01.04.2021 to 30.09.2021)       

        
  Isha Jain - Company Secretary (01.10.2021 to 31.03.2022)       

 i) There are no business transactions with key managerial personnel or their relatives       

Particulars as at 31.3.2022

2 Deepak Khullar - Chief Executive Officer  2.40   0.97 

4 Shyamala Kunder- Company Secretary (01.04.2021 to 30.09.2021) 0.37   -   

5 Isha Jain- Company Secretary (wef 01.10.2021) 0.75   -  

1 Pankaj Kumar- Chief Excecutive Officer (01.04.2020 to 16.07.2020) -    0.27

3 T.C.Dalal -  Chief Financial Officer  0.90   0.90 

as at 31.3.2021
Sr.
No.

 B In terms of Ind AS 24, following are the disclosure requirements related to transactions with certain Government 
Related entities i.e. Significantly controlled and influenced entities by Government of India (not included in the 
list above) :

Name of the Entities and Nature of transactions    2021-2022

 Finance Cost for the year (385.45)  (351.90)

 Other Receivables -     4.10 

 SOD Ticket (0.01)  (0.01)

  

 Trade Receivable from Air India 50.70   296.19 

       

 Miscellaneous expenses (medical ) -     (0.61)

 SAP maintenance expenses -     (0.34)

 Miscellaneous expenses (security training) -     (0.10)

 Closing Balance 31.3.2022 

 Loan received during the year -     259.30 

 Sales during the year 113.66   147.23 

 Other Payables -     (0.30)

 Loan payable to Air India -     (4,392.89)

1 AIR INDIA LIMITED (upto 11.01.2022)      

 AI Assets Holding Limited (wef 11.01.2022- as on 31.03.2022)      

 Loan payable   (5,029.59)  -   

 Finance Cost for the year (97.30)  -   

2020-2021
Sr.
No.
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 Alliance Air Aviation  Limited (AAAL)(formerly known as 

2 AIAHL SUBSIDIARIES 

 Alliance Air Aviation  Limited (AAAL)(formerly known as 

 Air India Express Limited (AIXL) (upto 11.01.2022) -    0.12

  AI Airport Services Limited (AIASL) (formerly AIATSL) 2.61 1.13

  AI Airport Services Limited (AIASL) (formerly AIATSL)  2.19   0.09 

 AI Engineering Services Limited (AIESL) 13.45   8.82 

 Airlines Allied Services Ltd. (AASL))  0.43   1.08 

ii) Trade Receivables  on 31.3.2022      

i) Sales during the year      

 Air India Express Limited (AIXL) (upto 11.01.2022) -     0.16 

 Airlines Allied Services Ltd. (AASL))  0.52  0.30

       

 AI Engineering Services Limited (AIESL) 7.20 7.39

        
 Note: The Related Parties have been identified by the Company and relied upon by the auditors        

44 As per the Agreement between Airports Authority of India (AAI) and the Company the lease  period for the land on 

which Centaur Hotel Delhi and Chefair Delhi is located,  is valid till 31.3.2032 . However AAI had served  notice 

dated 8 November 2016 for early termination of lease of land as the land is  required by them for airport expansion. 

With the intervention of Ministry of Civil Aviation, an extension up to 31 December 2019 for vacating the said 

leasehold land has been granted.  Thus the Company was required to give vacant possession of land by 

30.11.2019 and surrender the said leasehold land to AAI by 31 December 2019. In this regard, negotiations for 

compensation to be claimed from AAI were carried out in consultation with the Ministry.      

 

        

 Accordingly, a meeting was convened on 4.011.2019 by Secretary Civil Aviation to discuss the matter regarding 

compensation on termination of Lease agreement to HCI.  In the said meeting AAI clarified that as per the proposed 

Master Plan 2016 for Indira Gandhi International Airport, Delhi the project at the HCI hotel site is to be developed 

under the Master Plan phase commencing from 2026 and it was also confirmed that the HCI property is not 

infringing the proposed runway but the land would be required for parking of aircraft.      

45 The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act       

43 Luxury Tax liability of Centaur Delhi as on 31st March 2022  is NIL  (previous year NIL). The Company is in the 

process of defreezing the bank accounts frozen by the Luxury Tax authorities in 2012-13,hence confirmations of 

bank accounts amounting to Rs 0.61 million is on the date of freezing.       

 The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises suppliers defined under "The Micro Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act 2006" have been identified . The payments to such undertakings covered under Micro Small and 

        

 

 Secretary, Civil Aviation stated that AAI needed to take an economic call on the issue taking into consideration the 

economics of allowing HCI to continue operations for the balance lease period. In view of the above, it was decided 

in the meeting that in case AAI decides that the land is not required by AAI for aeronautical purpose then full 

permission may be given to HCI for commercial utilisation including O&M contract for the remaining period of the 

lease. The said decision was communicated to HCI vide Ministry's letter 20.12.2019 allowing HCI to use the 

land/structure upto the expiry of the existing lease period i.e. on 31.03.2032 and to vacate the land positively upon 

the expiry of lease period. It was also conveyed that since HCI has defaulted in payment of AAI dues from 2002 

onwards as per the terms of agreement, an Arbitrator may be appointed as per the provisions of existing agreement 

to sort out the dispute, which is pending. In the meanwhile, DIAL  filed a Writ in the Delhi High Court challenging the 

Ministry's letter dated 20.12.2019. The matter is still pending in the Hon'ble High Court       
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Medium Enterprises are generally being made within the prescribed credit period agreed upon with the supplier and 

hence no interest is calculatted on delayed payments.       
        
46 The Company had conducted physical verification of each group of fixed assets in 2019-20. All the assets so verified  

have been mapped with the Fixed Assets Register during the year 2021-22 . No major discrepancies have been 

observed.       
        
47 There is no impairment of assets as envisaged under Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS 36) ‘Impairment of 

Assets’.        
        
48 The company is in the process of :       

 a) streamlining the inventory reporting system in terms of generation of reports towards movement of item-wise 

store records and configuring of the stores ledger during the year. At the year end, consumption as per the 

stores records is  reconciled with the financial records and adjustments are duly accounted for.       
 

        
49 The Company is  in the process of :       

 a) strengthening the internal audit process  so as to ensure adequate coverage of all the areas  and ensure 

effective internal controls at all units of the Company       

 b) instituting a maker checker process in order that a system of checks and balances is in place to prevent revenue 

leakage through Purchase and misuse and to ensure proper control over the Procurement and Consumption 

Cycles.         

        

 c) Laying down Standard Operating Procedures with regard to timely accounting of all transactions to ensure that 

proper books of accounts are maintained.        

 b) Reviewing the frequency of verification of cash,cheques, drafts etc., in hand through internal audit/officers other 

than cashiers.       

 The outbreak of corona virus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant disturbance and 

slowdown of economic activity. The Company's operation and revenue during the year were also impacted due to 

COVID-19. The Company has taken into account the possible impact of COVID-19 in preparation of audited 

financial statements, including its assessment of recoverable value of its assets based on internal and external 

information upto the date of approval of these audited financial Statements and current indicators of future 

economic conditions.       

 The Company faces significant uncertainties due to the COVID-19pandemic which has impacted the operations of 

the Company adversely starting from the month of March 2020. Management believes that as per estimates made 

conservatively, the Company will continue as a going concern and will be able to discharge its liabilities and realise 

the carrying amount of its assets as on  March 31, 2022.      

52 Going Concern:       

 Also refer note 2 (v) Estimation uncertainty due to COVID-19 - Based on aforesaid assessment, management 

believes that as per estimates made conservatively, the group will continue as a going concern and will be able to 

discharge its liabilities and realise the carrying amount of its assets as on March 31, 2022.       

 

        
51 Impact of COVID 19       

50  In the opinion of the Company, the Current Assets and Loans and Advances are approximately of the value stated if 

realised in the ordinary course of business. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the 

amount reasonably necessary.        

        

 Inspite of the negative Net Worth of the Company as at the balance sheet date, considering the continuous support 

Government of India will ensure the company runs its business as going concern. Also, the Company has signed 

Master Service Agreements with Air India which is valid upto 31.12.2024 which ensures that company will be able to 
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 Refurbishment of existing 50 Guest Rooms at Centaur Hotel Delhi Airport to increase the occupancy level.           

53 Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified to conform presentation as per Ind AS as required by 

Schedule III of the Act.       

        

        
54 The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30.11.2022.

run its business as going concern in near future. Accordingly the Company has prepared its accounts on a "going 

concern" basis .Various initiatives have also been taken by the management for improving the operational 

performance of the company and increasing the revenues  in view of the following:       

 The Company is also tapping Online Travel Agents, Walk-in Customers, Event Booking, Corporates for increasing 

the business. The Company is also planning of introducing additional capex for operationally essential matters, 

obtaining ISO Certification in order to upgrade the present properties.       

As per our report of even date 
For JAIN JAGAWAT KAMDAR & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 122530W

CA Agnel Rodrigues
Partner
Membership No: 156128

Place  : Mumbai
Date   :  05-12-2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   
of  HOTEL CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED   
 
sd/- 
Vikram Dev Dutt  
Chairman 
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sd/- 
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Chief Executive Officer  
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sd/-
Rubina Ali
Nominee Director
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Thrity Dalal
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SEGMENTWISE REPORTING FOR THE YEAR 2021-22     

Annexure	I

A.  PRIMARY BUSINESS SEGMENT :

Particulars Hotels Flight Kitchens Others Total

    

   (140.24)  (101.94)  (7.42)  (249.60)

3.  SEGMENT ASSETS  469.49   221.75   163.99   855.22 

 (-ve) (663.87)  (309.69)  (7.37)  (980.94) 

    

   (590.58)  (415.52)  (186.32)  (1,192.42)

1.  SEGMENT REVENUE  185.39   155.45   11.52  352.36 

    

   (1,173.17)  (915.48)  (4,223.57)  (6,312.22)

4.  SEGMENT LIABILITIES  1,154.91   804.14   5,034.77   6,993.83 

 Loss after Interest, Exceptional  -228.78 -119.12 -494.61 -842.51

5.  CAPITAL EMPLOYED -685.42 -582.40 -4870.79 -6138.61

 and Extraordinary Items 

 (-ve)  (582.59)  (499.96)  (4,037.24)  (5,119.80)

6.  TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE  2.32   13.57   -     15.89 

    

   (3.52)  (3.54)  (0.02)  (7.08)

2.  SEGMENT RESULT( LOSS)    

     

     

 Figures in brackets relate to previous year.    

B. GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT :

 The Company provides services within India and hence, does not have any operations in economic environments 
with different risks and returns. Hence, it is considered that the Company is operating in a single geographical 
segment.    
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